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Assets 

Current 

Cash In bank 
Cash on hand 
GIST rebate 
HST rebate 

$ 	147,802.14 
47.13 

4,979,67 
7,366.20  
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CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

BALANCE SHEET 
as at June 30, 2013 

(Unaudited) 

TOTAL ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILTDES 

STATEMENT OP CHANGES IN SURPLUS 

Balance at Bei/Inning of Period 	$ 	357,728.53 
Increase In Equity during period 	(206,043.68)  
Surplus at End of Period 

TOTAL LIABILITIES and SURPLUS 

Approved by: 

$ 169 68+
04 

0.00 

$ 159 665.04 

$ 159 635 04 
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CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 
for the period ended June 30, 2013 

(Unaudited) 

Receipts 

Donations from Other Ch• 

Total Receipts 

Disbursements 

$ 	14,775.70 

$ 	14,775.70 

Gifts to Qualified Donees $ 0.00 

Charitable Programs: 
Accounting and Legal fees 113.309.77 
Bank charges 16.52 
Consulting expense 51,520.19 
Office expenses 1,072.58 
Travel expense 39 464.34 

205,383.40 

Administration expenses: 
Accounting and Legal fees 1,406.00 
Bank charges 61.02 
Consulting expense 4,415.87 

Marketing expenses 2,610.75 

Meals and entertainment 188.55 
Office expenses 253.24 
Travel expense 8,500.46 

17,435.8g 

$ 222,819.29 

Total Disbursements 

SURPLUS 
Increase (Decrease) in Surplus during Period 	 $  (208,043.59) 



CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

BALANCE SHEET 

as at June 30, 2014 
(Unaudited) 

Assets 

Current 

Cash in bank $ 	69,411.13 
Accounts Receivable 360.00 
GST rebate 1,741.57 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 	71,512.70 

TOTAL LIABILTIIES 

Accounts Payable $ 	6.10 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SURPLUS 

Balance at Beginning of Period $ 	159,685.04 
Increase in Equity during period (88,178.44) 
Surplus at End of Period $ 	71,506.60 

TOTAL LIABILITIES and SURPLUS $ 	71,512.70 

Approved by: 
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CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 

for the period ended June 30, 2014 
(Unaudited) 

Receipts 

Receipted donations $ 	0.00 

Total Receipts $ 	0.00 

Disbursements 

$ 	0.00 
Gifts to Qualified Donees 

Charitable Programs: 
Consulting expense 30,971.00 
Travel expense 7,749.99 

38,720.99 

Administration expenses: 

Accounting and Legal fees $ 	2,665.00 
Bank charges 132.23 
Consulting expense 23,980.00 
Meals and entertainment 1,324.16 
Office expenses 13,664.55 
Travel expense 7,691.51 

49,457.45 
SURPLUS 
Increase (Decrease) in Surplus during Period $ 	88,178.44 
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Canadian Education Forum 

Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2016 
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Review Engagement Report 

To the Members of 

Canadian Education Forum: 

We have reviewed the statement of financial position of Canadian Education Forum as at June 30, 2016 

and the statements of changes in net assets, operations and cash flows for the year then ended. Our 
review was made in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review engagements and 
accordingly consisted primarily of enquiry, analytical procedures and discussion related to information 
supplied to us by the Organization. 

A review does not constitute an audit and consequently we do not express an audit opinion on these 
financial statements. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that these financial 

statements are not, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-
for-Profit Organizations (ASNFPO). 

We draw attention to summary of significant accounting policies - basis of presentation to the financial 

statements, which describes that Canadian Education Forum adopted the Canadian ASNFPO on July I, 

2015 with a transition date of July 1, 2014. These standards were applied retrospectively by management 

to the comparative information in these financial statements, including the statements of financial position 

as at June 30, 2015 and July 1, 2014, and the statements of operations, change in net assets and cash flows 

for the year ended June 30, 2015 and related disclosures. We were not engaged to report on the restated 
comparative information and, as such, it is neither audited nor reviewed. 

Vancouver, British Columbia 	
Chartered Professional Accountants 
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'Canadian Education Forum 

Statement of Financial Position 
(Unaudited) 

	

June 30 	June 30 	July 1 
2016 	2015 	2014  

Assets 

Current 

Cash 
S 136,677 $ 11,927 $ 69,411 Amounts receivable 

	

3,320 	3,711 	2,102 

	

S _ 139,997 	5 	15.638 	5 	71,513 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 	 $ 137,213 	5,360 	$ 	6 Advance payable (Note 3) 	
25,000 

162,213 	5,360 	 6 

Net assets 

Unrestricted 	
(22,216) 	10,278 	71,507  

S 139 997 	S 	15,638 	$ 	71,513 

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors: 

Director 

 

Director 

   

The a.:companying notes form an integral part of theme financtal statements 
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Canadian Education Forum 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

(Unaudited) 

For the year ended June 30, 2016 

Net Assets, July 1, 2014 

Loss from operation 

Net Assets, June 30, 2015  

Unrestricted 

$ 	71,507 

(61,229) 

S 	10.278 

Loss from operation 

Net Assets, June 30, 2016 

(32,494) 

S 	(22,216) 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Canadian Educatipn:Xonign 
Statement of Operations 

For the year ended June 30  
2016 

(Unaudited) 

2015 

Donations 

Educational program expenditures 
Intercultural research 

Development and implementation 
Strategic planning 

General and administrative expenditures 
Office and miscellaneous 
Professional fees 

Loss from operation 

$ 230,200 $ 	109,150 

116,341 

73,292 
51,250 

115,900 

53,681 

240,883 169,581 

92 
21,719 

162 

636 

21,S11 798 

62,694 170,379 

$ 	32,494) $ 	(61,229) 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2016 2015 

(57,484) 

69,411 

	

30,200 	109,150 

	

84,030) 	(164,227) 

	

21,420) 	2,407) 

24,750 

11,927 

'0,7C% ••,•-.7: 

Canadian Education Forum 
Statement of Cash Flows 

(Unaudited) 

For the year ended June 30  

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from donations 
Cash used for: 

Program activities 
Administration purposes 

Increase (decrease) in cash during the year 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash end of ear 
677 11,927 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Canadian Education Forum 

Notes to Financial Statements 
(Unaudi ted) 

June 30, 2016 

I. Nature and Purpose of the Organization 

The Canadian Education Forum (the "Organization") is incorporated as a not-for-profit organization. 

The Organization is a registered charity and is exempt from income taxes provided certain 
requirements of the Federal Income Tax Act are met. 

The Organization was founded for the following purposes: 

a) to fund, facilitate, promote and carry out activities and programs as well as fund and supply 
equipment and facilities which 

i) promote the advancement of education by providing students with intercultural, language 

and communication skills through classroom teaching, tutorial assistance, community 

interaction and access to advanced educational technology such as computers, video 
materials and the intemet; 

ii) enable the provision of post-secondary educational programs and services normally offered 
by academic colleges and universities including research facilities, classrooms, meeting 
rooms, administrative offices and residential facilities; 

b) 
to receive gifts, bequests, trust, funds and property and beneficially, or as a trustee or agent, to 

hold, invest, develop, manage, administer and distribute funds and property for the purposes of 

the Organization, for and to such other organizations as are "qualified donees" under the 
provisions of the Income Tax Act and for such other purposes and activities as are authorized for 
registered charities under the provisions of the Income Tax Act; and 

c) 
to conduct any and all activities and exercise any and all such powers as arc necessary for the 
achievement and furtherance of the purposes of the Organization. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of Presentation 

These financial statements are the Organization's first financial statements prepared in accordance 

with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations (ASNFPO) with a transition 

date of July 1, 2014. The Organization did not elect any exemptions under the transition 
provisions set out in CICA Handbook - Accounting, Section 1501, First-time adoption by not-for-
profit organizations. 

The Organization retrospectively applied ASNFPO to the opening balances as of July 1, 2014, 
and 

the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015. Adopting these standards had no impact 

on the comparative figures, and there has been no restatement of net assets at the date of transition 
on July 1, 2014. 

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. 
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Canadian Education Forum 

Notes to Financial Statements 
(Unaudited) 

June 30, 2016 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(b) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Canadian Accounting Standards 

for Not-for-Profit Organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and 

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses 

during the year. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and assumptions are 

reviewed periodically based on historical experience and other relevant considerations. Revisions 
to estimates and assumptions are accounted for prospectively. 

(c) Revenue Recognition 

The Organization uses the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Under the deferral 

method of accounting for contributions, restricted contributions are deferred and recognized as 

revenue when the related expenditures designated by the contributor arc incurred. Unrestricted 

contributions are recognized as revenue in the year received or receivable if the amount to be 

received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

(d) Financial Instruments 

Measurement of financial instruments 

The Organization initially measures its financial instruments at fair value, except for certain non-
arm's length transactions. 

The Organization subsequently measures all its financial instruments at amortized cost, except 

for investments in equity instruments that are quoted in an active market, which are measured at 
fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in net income. 

Financial instruments measured at amortized cost consist of cash, amounts receivable, and 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 

The Organization had no investments in equity instruments which were quoted in an active 
market. 

Impairment 

Financial assets measured at cost are tested for impairment when there are indicators of 

impairment. If an impairment exists, the amount of the write-down is recognized in the statement 

of operations the period impairment was determined. The previously recognized impairment loss 
may be reversed to the extent of the improvement, directly or by adjusting the allowance account, 
provided it is no greater than the amount that would have been reported at the date of reversal 
had the impairment not been recognized previously. The amount of reversal is recognized in net income. 
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Canadian Education Forum 

Notes to Financial Statements 
(Unaudited) 

June 30, 2016 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(d) Financial Instruments (continued) 

Risks 

It is management's opinion that the Organization is not exposed to significant currency, interest, 
market, or credit risk on these financial instruments. 

3. Advance Payable 

The amount due to a charitable foundation is non-interest bearing and is due on or before June 30, 
2017. 





To the Members of 

Canadian Education Forum: 

Review Engagement Report 

We have reviewed the statement of financial position of Canadian Education Forum as at June 30, 2017 

and the statements of changes in net assets, operations and cash flows for the year then ended. Our 

review was made in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review engagements and 

accordingly consisted primarily of enquiry, analytical procedures and discussion related to information 

supplied to us by the Organization. 

A review does not constitute an audit and .consequently we do not express an audit opinion on these 

financial statements. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that these financial 

statements are not, in aJI material respects, in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-

for-Profit Organizations (ASNFPO). 

Vancouver, British Columbia Chartered Professional Accountants 



Statement of Financial Positi.oil 
(Unaudited) 

..hale30 , 
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Acco.unts payable.and~ liabilities 
Advance payablt (Note 4) ··· 

S 166,695 $ 136.,677 

.~ u 111 • • M?,J.Jf!Mfl •c··-J.•1~9, . .,..~:: ,...... ~ ,--- . .: 

...... _: ___ .,_ec. -:. 7i ·uf:r~·:•'ss·1i·· -l3.9~~:t 
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Approved on behalf of the .B.oard of Direators: 
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June 30, 2017 

Canadian Education Forum 

Notes to Financial Statements 
(Unaudited) 

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ( continued) 

( d) Financial Instruments ( continued) 

Risks 

It is management's opinion that the Organization is not exposed to significant currency, interest, 

market, or credit risk on these financial instruments and there have not been any significant 

changes in risk exposure from prior years. 

4. Advance Payable 

The amount due to a charitable foundation is non-interest bearing and was repaid on August 2017. 

5. Revision of Prior Year's Results 

The financial statements have been adjusted retrospectively to record adjustments related to program 
expenses. As at June 30, 2016, accounts payable and educational program expenditures were 

understated by $37,488 and net assets was overstated by $37,488. The impact on the financial 

statement as at June 30, 2016 is as follows: 

Statement of Financial Position: 

Accounts payable 

Net assets 

Statement of Operations: 
Educational program expenditures 

As previously 

reported 

$ 137,213 $ 

(22,216) 

$ 240,883 $ 

Effect of 

revision Revised amount 

37,488 $ 174,701 
(37,488) (59,704) 

37,488 $ 278,371 

8 
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Agence du revenu 
du Canada 

ui fl iii toA
C:r6tlacyda Revenue 

REGISTERED CHARITY INFORMATION RETURN 
11111111111111 

 

22 2012-06-30 891072092 RR 0001 	1097393 
Section A: Identification 

• Guide T4033, Completing the Registered Charity Information Return, is available through our Forms and publications Web pages at 

www.cra.gc.ca/charities.  

• The Privacy Act protects all personal information given on this form, which is kept in personal information bank CRA PPU 200. The Canada 
Revenue Agency (CRA) will make this form and all attachments available to the public on the Charities Directorate Web site, except for 
information or data identified as confidential. All of the information collected on this form may be shared as permitted by law (e.g. with 
certain other government departments and agencies).  

Remember: Even if the charity goes through an inactive period, you must continue to file information returns to maintain its registered status. 

If you did not receive a barcode label to affix to the return, please complete the following: 

1. Charity's name: 

Canadian Education Forum 

2. Return for fiscal period ending: 3. BN/registration number: 4. Web address (if applicable) 

2012/06/30 89107 2092 RR 0001 

 

 

 

Was the charity in a subordinate position to a parent organization? 

If yes, please provide the name and BN/registration number of the organization. 

15101 Yes 5( No Al 

   

Name BN (if applicable) 

RR 

A2 Has the charity wound-vp, dissolved, or terminated 	p e rat i o n s? 15701 Yes No 

All charities are designated as one of the following: a charitable organization, a public foundation, A3 
or a private foundation. Is your organization designated as a public foundation or private foundation? 16001 Yes 

(Refer to the Form TF725, Registered Charity Basic Information sheet (BIS) to confirm. This form is included in the return package.) 

If yes, you must complete and attach Schedule 1, Foundations, to your return. 

Section B: Directors/trustees and like officials 

B1 The charity is required to provide certain information for all members of its board of directors/trustees for the complete fiscal period. Only 

the public information section on the worksheet is available to the public. The confidential data section is for the CRA's use but may be 
shared as permitted by law (e.g. with certain other government departments and agencies). Use Form T1235, Directors/Trustees and Like 

Officials Worksheet, or include your own sheet with the same information. Charities subject to the Ontario Corporations Act may complete 

a blended worksheet. 

Section C: Programs and general information 

El Was the charity active during the fiscal period? If no, explain why in the 

"Ongoing programs" space provided at C2 	 1800 Ei Yes ❑ No 

Effl In the space provided, describe all ongoing and new charitable programs the charity carried on to further its charitable purpose(s) (as 
defined in its governing documents) this fiscal period. "Programs" includes all of the charitable work the charity carries out on its own 
through employees or volunteers as well as through qualified donees and intermediaries. The charity may also use this space to describe 
the contributions of its volunteers in carrying out its programs (e.g. number of volunteers and/or hours). Grant-making charities should 
describe the types of organizations they support. Please note that "programs" does not include fundraising activities. Do not attach 

additional sheets of paper or annual reports. 

Ongoing programs: 
Delivered and developed academic programs on topics of interest to professionals, academics, administrators, volunteers and 

others involved in Canada's charitable sector. 

New programs: 

Recelven:*1-1k10,1A 14Wie.ns  

Data ASA 	

, 

Vett0C4tigfi 04'4 
00.0.* 

ottavialionoloo cote 
Cantle l'achneogi.:4 D'Ottawa 

T3010-1 E (10) 	 (Ce formulaire existe en frangais.) 
	

12103 
	

Canada 
Page 1 of 9 



No Yes 2100 1 

26201 

26301 

26401 

26501 

2660 

Telephone/TV solicitations 

Tournament/sporting events 

Cause-related marketing 

Other 

Specify: 

27001 Yes X No 

5450 

5460,  

Registeredicharities may make gifts to qualified donees. Qualified donees are other registered Canadian charities, as well as certain 
dther organizations described in the Income Tax Act.  

Ea Did the charity makeOfts or transfer funds to qualified donees or other organizations? 	 20001 Yes 	No 

If yes, you must complete and attach Form T1236, Qualified Donees Worksheet/Amounts Provided to Other Organizations, to your return. 

in Did the charity carry on, fund, or provide any resources through employees, volunteers, agents, joint ventures, 
contractors, or any other individuals, intermediaries, entities, or means (other than qualified donees) for any 

activity/program/project outside Canada? 

If yes, you must complete and attach Schedule 2, Activities Outside Canada, to your return. 

A registered charity may pursue political activities to retain, oppose, or change the law, policy, or decision of any level of government 
inside or outside Canada provided the activities are non-partisan, related to its charitable purposes, and limited in extent.  

 

(a) Did the charity carry on any political activities during the fiscal period? 

(b) Enter the total amount spent by the charity on these activities 

  

2400 1 Yes El No 

     

      

   

5030,  

  

      

      

       

C6 
	

If the charity carried on fundraising activities or engaged third parties to carry on fundraising activities on its behalf, tick all 
fundraising methods that it used during the fiscal period. 

Advertisements/print/radio/ 
TV commercials 

Fundraising sales (e.g., cookies) 2500 1 25701 

25101 Auctions 25751 Internet 

25301 Collection plate/boxes 25801 Mail campaigns 

Door-to-door solicitation Planned-giving programs 25401 25901 

Draws/lotteries 
Targeted corporate donations/ 
sponsorships 2550 2600 1 

25601 Fundraising dinners/galas/concerts 26101 Targeted contacts 

Did the charity pay external fundraisers? 

If yes, you must complete the following lines, and complete and attach 
Schedule 4, Confidential Data, 1. Information about Fundraisers. 

(a) Enter the gross revenue collected by the fundraisers on behalf of the charity. 

(b) Enter the amounts paid to and/or retained by the fundraisers. 

(c) Identify the method of payment to the fundraiser: 

27301 Commissions 27501 Finder's fees 	 27701 	Honoraria 

    

27401 Bonuses 27601 Set fee for services 	 27801 	Other 

   

Specify: 

 

 

2790 

  

    

     

    

(d) Did the fundraiser issue tax receipts on behalf of the charity? 

Did the charity compensate any of its directors/trustees or like officials or persons not at arm's length from 

the charity for services provided during the fiscal period (other than reimbursement for out-of pocket expenses)? 

Did the charity incur any expenses for compensation of employees during the fiscal period? 

If yes, you must complete and attach Schedule 3, Compensation, to your return. 

2800 1 

 

Yes X No 

       

 

C8 

     

      

Yes II No 

Yes X No 

    

3200 1 

 

      

    

34001 

 

C9 

 

    

       

        

C10 Did the charity receive any donations or gifts of any kind valued at $10,000 or more from any donor that 

was not resident in Canada and was not any of the following: 

• A Canadian citizen, nor 

• Employed in Canada, nor 

• Carrying on a business in Canada, nor 

• A person having disposed of taxable Canadian property? 
If yes, you must complete and attach Schedule 4, Confidential Data, 2. Information about Donors Not Resident in Canada, 
for each donation of $10,000 or more. 

3900 1 Yes X No 

Em Did the charity receive any non-cash gifts (gifts-in-kind) for which it issued tax receipts? 	 40001 Yes ri No 

If yes, you must complete and attach Schedule 5, Non-Cash Gifts to your return. 

BE Did the charity acquire a non-qualifying security? 	 58001 Yes 3( No 

Ein Did the charity allow a donor to use any of the charity's property during the fiscal period? 

(except for permissible uses) 	 58101 Yes X No 

Em Did the charity issue any of its tax receipts for donations on behalf of another organization? 	 58201 Yes X No 
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4490 1 Yes ❑ No 

 

   

0 

 

4500 . 

   

   

0 

 

4510 . 

   

4530h. 

45651 Yes ❑ No 

 

Section 	Financial information 

If any of the following applies to your charity, proceed to Schedule 6, Detailed Financial Information, and do not complete Section D below. If 
none of the following applies, complete Section D. 

a) The charity's revenue exceeds $100,000. 
b) The amount of all property (e.g., investments, rental properties) not used in charitable programs exceeds $25,000. 
c) The charity currently has permission to accumulate funds during this fiscal period. 

Please show all figures to the nearest single dollar. 

     

40201 Accrual ['Cash 

 

D1 

  

Was the financial information reported below prepared on an accrual or cash basis? 

Summary of financial position: 

    

     

 

D2 

   

      

      

Using the charity's own financial statements, provide the following: 

Does the charity own land and/or buildings? 

Total assets (including land and buildings) 

Total liabilities 

Did the charity borrow from, loan to, or invest assets with any non-arm's length parties? 

 

40501 Yes ❑ No 

   

4200 

 

4350 

  

    

   

Yes ❑ No 

 

4400 1 

   

D3 Revenue: 

 

Did the charity issue tax receipts for donations? 

If yes, what is the total eligible amount of all donations for which the charity issued tax receipts 

Total amount of 10 year gifts received 4505 
	

0 

Total amount received from other registered charities 

What is the total amount for all other donations received for which a tax receipt was not issued by the charity? 
(excluding amounts at lines 4575 and 4630) 

Did the charity receive any revenue from any level of Canadian government? 

If yes, total amount received 

Total non tax-receipted amounts from all sources outside Canada (government and non-government). 

Total non tax-receipted amounts from fundraising 

Total revenue from sale of goods and services (except to any level of Canadian government). 

Other amounts not already included in the amounts above 

Total revenue (Add lines 4500 to 4650, excluding line 4505) 

        

   

4640 

    

        

        

   

4650 •. 

  

        

        

          

          

D4 Expenditures: 

 

What was the charity's total expenditure on professional and consulting fees? 

What was the charity's total expenditure on travel and vehicles? 

All other expenditures not already included in the amounts above (excluding gifts to qualified donees) 

Total expenditures (excluding gifts to qualified donees) (Add lines 4860, 4810, and 4920) 

Of the total amount at line 4950: 

a) How much did the charity spend on charitable programs? 

b) How much did the charity spend on management and administration? 

Total amount of gifts made to all qualified donees 

Total expenditures (Add lines 4950 and 5050) 

5000 

5010 

4860' 

4810 

4920 

4950 

0 

5050 0 

T3010-1 E (10) 
	

(Ce formulaire existe en frangais.) 	 12103 
	

Canada 
Page 3 of 9 



Section E: Certification 

This return must be signed by a director/trustee or like official of the registered charity who has authority to sign on behalf of the charity. It is a 
serious offence under the Income Tax Act to provide false or deceptive information. 

I certify that the information given on this form, the basic information sheet, and any attachment is, to the best of my knowledge, correct, 
complete, and current. 

Name (please print): 

Blake Bromley 

 

Position in charity: 

Director 

Date: 

2012/12/17 

    

Section F: Confidential Data 

	 	

	

13010, Registered Charity Information Return, checklist 

Have you confirmed that all charity information included in the Form TF725, Registered Charity Basic Information Sheet (BIS) is correct? 

• Some changes can be made directly on the BIS. 

~~Have you attached Form TF725, Registered Charity Basic Information sheet (BIS)? 

['Has the charity made any amendments to its governing documents during the fiscal period? 

• If yes, have you sent us an official copy of the amended governing documents in a separate envelope? 

❑ Have you completed Schedule 1, Foundations, if required? 

Have you attached Form T1235, Directors/Trustees and Like Officials Worksheet? 

❑ Have you attached Form T1236, Qualified Donees Worksheet/Amounts Provided to Other Organizations, if required? 

['Have you completed Schedule 2, Activities Outside Canada, if required? 

❑ Have you completed Schedule 3, Compensation, if required? 

❑ Have you completed Schedule 4, Confidential Data, if required? 

❑ Have you completed Schedule 5, Non-Cash Gifts, if required? 

X Have you completed Schedule 6, Detailed Financial Information, if required? 

X❑ Have you attached a copy of the charity's financial statements? 

T3010-1 E (10) 
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Yes ❑ No 

Yes ❑ No 

Yes ❑ No 

Yes ❑ No 

1001 

1101 

1201 

1301 

     

Yes ❑ No 

  

220 

  

     

      

  

230 

   

240 g Yes ❑ No 

2501 Yes 111No 

260 1 Yes ❑ No 

Foundations 	 Schedule 1 

E Did the foundation acquire control of a corporation in the fiscal period? 

1E5 Did the foundation incur any debts at any time during the fiscal period other than for current operating expenses, 

purchasing or selling investments, or in administering charitable programs? 

For private foundations only: 

El At any time during the fiscal period, did the foundation hold any shares, rights to acquire shares, or debts 
owing to it that meet the definition of a non-qualified investment? 

4 Did the foundation own more than 2% of any class of shares of a corporation at any time during this fiscalperiod? 

If yes, you must complete and attach Form T2081, Excess Corporate Holdings Worksheet, to your return. 
(Note: Only private foundations will have this worksheet included in their return package.) 

Activities Outside Canada 
	

Schedule 2 

For more information about carrying on programs outside Canada see the Charities Directorate website at www.cra.gc.ca/charities  

EI What were total expenditures on activities/programs/projects carried on outside Canada during the fiscal period, 

excluding gifts to qualified donees? 
EI Were any of the charity's resources provided for programs outside Canada under any kind 

of an arrangement including a contract, agency agreement, or joint venture to any other 
individual or entity (excluding gifts to qualified donees)? 

    

 

200 

  

    

   

Yes ❑ No 

 

2101 

    

If yes, enter the amounts of the total reported on line 200 transferred to these individuals/organizations as required in the following table. 

Name of individual/organization Using the list on the reverse, 
identify country code where 
activities were carried on. 

Amount ($) 
Show amounts to the 
nearest single dollar. 

Ei Using the list on the reverse, identify the countries where the charity itself carried on programs or provided any of its resources. Enter the 
appropriate country codes in the following spaces. 

4 Are any projects undertaken outside Canada funded by the 

Canadian International Development Agency (CIDA)? 

If yes, what was the total amount of funds expended under this arrangement? 

El Were any programs carried on outside Canada carried out by employees of the charity? 

6 Were any programs carried on outside Canada carried out by volunteers of the charity? 

El Is the charity exporting goods as part of its charitable programs? 

If yes, list the items being exported, their value, their destination (city/region) and country code. 

Item Value Destination (city/region) Country code 
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COUNTRY CODES 

Americas-Central and SoUth 
AR-Argentina 
BO-Bolivia 
BR-Brazil 
CL-Chile 
CO-Columbia 
CR-Costa Rica 
CU-Cuba 
DO-Dominican Republic 
EC-Ecuador 
SV-El Salvador 
GT-Guatemala 
GY-Guyana 
HT-Haiti 
HN-Honduras 
JM-Jamaica 
MX-Mexico 
NI-Nicaragua 
PA-Panama 
PE-Peru 
UY-Uruguay 
VE-Venezuela 
QM-Other 

Americas-North 
US-United States of America 
QN-Other 

Middle East 
IR-Iran 
IQ-Iraq 

IL-Israel 
PS-Israeli Occupied Territories 
JO-Jordan 
KW-Kuwait 
LB-Lebanon 
OM-Oman 
QA-Qatar 
SA-Saudi Arabia 
SY-Syrian Arab Republic 
YE-Yemen 
00-Other 

Europe 
AL- Albania 
AM-Armenia 
BA-Bosnia and Herzegovina 
BY-Belarus 
BG-Bulgaria 
DK-Denmark 
ES-Spain 
FR-France 
GE-Georgia 
DE-Germany 
GB-United Kingdom 
HR-Croatia 
IT-Italy 
CY-Cyprus 
MK-Macedonia 
ME-Montenegro 
NL-Netherlands 
PL-Poland 
RO-Romania 

RU-Russia 
RS-Serbia 
TR-Turkey 
UA-Ukraine 
QP-Other 

Asia and Oceania 
AF- Afghanistan 
AZ-Azerbaijan 
BD-Bangladesh 
BT-Bhutan 
KH-Cambodia 
CN-China 
IN-India 
ID-Indonesia 
KZ-Kazakhstan 
KG-Kyrgyzstan 
LA-Laos 
LK-Sri Lanka 
MY-Malaysia 
MN-Mongolia 
MM-Myanmar (Burma) 
KP-North Korea 
KR-South Korea 
PK-Pakistan 
PH-Philippines 
SG-Singapore 
TH-Thailand 
TJ-Tajikistan 
TL-Timor-Leste 
UZ-Uzbekistan 
VN-Vietnam 
QR-Other 

Africa 
DZ-Algeria 
AO-Angola 
BW-Botswana 
CM-Cameroon 
CF-Central African Republic 
TD-Chad 
CG-Republic of Congo 
CD- Democratic Republic of Congo 
EG-Egypt 
ET-Ethiopia 
GA-Gabon 
GM-Gambia 
GH-Ghana 
NA-Namibia 
KE-Kenya 
LR-Liberia 
MG-Madagascar 
NE-Niger 
NG-Nigeria 
RW-Rwanda 
SL-Sierra Leone 
SO-Somalia 
SD-Sudan 
UG-Uganda 
ZM-Zambia 
ZW-Zimbabwe 
QS-Other 

Compensation 
	

Schedule 3 

(a) Enter the number of permanent, full-time, compensated positions in the fiscal period. This number 
should represent the number of positions the charity had including both managerial positions and others, 

and should not include independent contractors. 	 300 

(b) For the ten (10) highest compensated, permanent, full-time positions enter the number falling within each of the 
following annual compensation categories. 

$1 — $39, 999 $40,000 — $79,999 $80,000 — $119,999 

$120,000 — $159,999 $160,000 — $199,999 $200,000 — $249,999 

$250,000 — $299,999 $300,000 — $349,999 $350,000 and over 

(a) Enter the number of part-time or part-year (for example, seasonal) employees the charity employed during 

the fiscal period 

(b) What was the total expenditure on compensation for part-time or part-year employees in the fiscal period? 

El What was the charity's total expenditure on all compensation in the fiscal period? 

 

370 

       

   

380 

   

       

       

       

   

3904. 
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500 1 

5051 

5101 

5151 

5201 

Ecological properties 

Life insurance policies 

Medical equipment/supplies 

5251 

5301 

535 1 

550 1 

555 1 

560 

540 1 

5451 

Confidential Data 
	

Schedule 4 

The information in this confidential data schedule is for the CRA's use but may be shared as permitted by law (e.g. with certain other 
government departments and agencies). 

1. Information about Fundraisers 

Please provide the name(s) and arm's length status of external fundraiser(s). 

Name 
	

At arm's length? Yes/No 

2. Information about Donors Not Resident in Canada 

Complete this schedule to report any donation of $10,000 or more received from any donor that was not resident in Canada and was not any of 
the following: 

• A Canadian citizen, nor 

• Employed in Canada, nor 

• Carrying on business in Canada, nor 

• A person having disposed of taxable Canadian property 

Provide the name of the donor and the value of the donation in the chart below. You must also indicate whether the donor was an organization 
(for example a business, corporate entity, charity, non-profit organization), a government or an individual by placing a check mark in the 
appropriate box. 

Name 
	

Amount 
	

Organization Government Individual 

Non-Cash Gifts 
	

Schedule 5 

El Identify all types of non-cash gifts (gifts-in-kind) received for which a tax-receipt was issued: 

Artwork/wine/jewellery 

Building materials 

Clothing/furniture/food 

Vehicles 

Cultural properties 

Publicly traded securities/mutual funds 

Books (literature, comics) 

Other 

Privately-held securities 	Bp Specify: 	  

Machinery/equipment (including computers and software) 

El Indicate the total eligible amount of tax receipted non-cash gifts 
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4600 '. 

4610 '. 

46204. 

46304. 

4640 '. 

4650 

47004 260,000 

Amount included in lines 4150, 4155, 4160, 

4165 and 4170 not used in charitable 

programs 4250 

4500 

5610 

4505 

45104. 260,000 

4530 '. 

45404. 

45504. 

4560 

4575 

4580 '. 

4655 

Detailed Financial Information 
	

Schedule 6 

Was the financial information reported below prepared on an accrual or cash basis? 

Statement of financial position 

  

Accrual ❑ Cash 

 

4020 

  

Show figures to the nearest single dollar. 

Assets: 

Cash, bank accounts, and short-term investments 
	

4100 '. 

Amounts receivable from non-arm's length parties 
	

4110'. 

Amounts receivable from all others 
	

4120 '. 

Investments in non-arm's length parties 
	

4130 '. 

Long-term investments 
	

4140 '. 

Inventories 
	

4150 '. 

Land and buildings in Canada 
	

41554. 

Other capital assets in Canada 
	

4160 '. 

Capital assets outside Canada 
	

41654. 

Accumulated amortization of capital assets 
	

4166 

Other assets 
	

4170 

10 year gifts 
	

4180 . 

Total assets (add lines 4100 to 4170) 

Statement of operations 

Revenue: 

Total eligible amount of all gifts for which the charity issued tax receipts 

Total eligible amount of tax-receipted tuition fees 

Total amount of 10 year gifts received 

Total amount received from other registered charities 

Total other gifts received for which a tax receipt was not issued by the charity 

Total revenue received from federal government 

Total revenue received from provincial/territorial governments 

Total revenue received from municipal/regional governments 

Total revenue received from all sources outside Canada 

Total interest and investment income received or earned 

Gross proceeds from disposition of assets 

Net proceeds from disposition of assets (show a negative amount with brackets) 

Gross income received from rental of land and/or buildings 

Non tax-receipted revenues received for memberships, dues, and association fees 

Total non tax-receipted revenue from fundraising 

Total revenue from sale of goods and services (except to government) 

Other revenue not already included in the amounts above 

Specify type(s) of revenue included in the amount reported at 4650 (e.g., dividends) 

Total revenue (add lines 4500, 4510 to 4580, and 4600 to 4650) 

Expenditures: 

367,729 

4200• 
	

367,729 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Deferred revenue 

Amounts owing to non-arm's length parties 

Other liabilities 

Total liabilities (add lines 4300 to 4330) 

Advertising and promotion 

Travel and vehicle expenses 

Interest and bank charges 

Licences, memberships, and dues 

Office supplies and expenses 

Occupancy costs 

Professional and consulting fees 

Education and training for staff and volunteers 

Total expenditure on all compensation (enter the amount reported at line 390 in Schedule 3 if applicable) 

Fair market value of all donated goods used in charitable programs 

Total cost of all purchased supplies and assets 

         

 

4800 '. 

4810 *. 

4820 '. 

4830 '. 

4840 '. 

4850 

4860 

48704. 

48804. 

4890 *. 

4891 '. 

    

4,216 

48 

     

      

111 

     

1,068 

4,716 
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4900 *. 

4910 

4920 

Amortization of capitalized assets 

Total expenditure for research grants and scholarships as part of charitable programs 

Other expenditures not included in the amounts above (excluding 	gifts to qualified donees) 

Specify type(s) of expenditures included in the amount reported at 4920 

Total expenditures before gifts to qualified donees (add lines 4800 to 4920) 4950 ;. 
	

10,159 

4930 

Lines 5000 to 5040 represent a breakdown of the expenditures on lines 4800 to 4920. The total of lines 5000 to 5040 should equal line 4950. 

    

4,716 

5,443 

10,159 

Total expenditures on charitable programs 

Total expenditures on management and administration 

Total expenditures on fundraising 

Total expenditures on political activities, inside or outside Canada 

Total other expenditures included in line 4950 

Total amount of gifts made to all qualified donees 

Total expenditures (add amounts from line 4950 and 5050) 

 

5000 

5010 '. 

50204. 

5030 '. 

5040 '. 

50504. 

5100 

   

Other financial information 

Permission to accumulate property: 
Only registered charities that have written permission to accumulate should complete this section. 

• Enter the amount accumulated for the fiscal period, including income earned on accumulated funds 

• Enter the amount disbursed for the fiscal period for the specified purpose we have permitted 

Permission to reduce disbursement quota: 
If the charity has received approval from the Charities Directorate to make a reduction to its disbursement quota, 

enter the amount for the fiscal period 

0 

0 

    

0 

 

5750 . 

 

     

Property not used in charitable activities 

Enter the value of property not used for charitable activities or administration during: 

• The 24 months before the beginning of the fiscal period 

• The 24 months before the end of the fiscal period 

60,707 

241,371 
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11111111111 

 

        

         

          

22 2012-06-30 891072092 RR 0001 	1097393 	'm 

Agence du revenu 
du Canada 

Directors/Trustees and Like Officials Worksheet 

Enter the prescribed inforniation for each director/trustee and like official of the 
Agency makes the public information section on this worksheet available to the 
confidential data, may be shared as permitted by law (e.g. with certain other gol 
for an explanation of terms used. 

Total Number of Directors/Trustees and Like Officials: 
	

3 

Canada Revenue 
Agency 

Public information Confidential Data 
Last name: 

Bromley 
First name: 	 Initial: 

Blake 
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term I 

Start Date: 2006/03/01 End Date: 

	

	

Position: 

director 
At arm's length with other 	

	Directors, etc.? 	X Yes I No 

Last name: 

Richardson 
First name: 	 Initial: 

Christopher 
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term I 

Start Date: 2007/03/30 End Date: 

	

	

Position: 

director 
At arm's length with other_ 

Directors, etc.? 	Yes _ No  

	

	

Last name: 

Brandlmayr 
First name: 	 Initial: 

Leslie 
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term I 

Start Date: 2007/03/30 End Date: 

	

	

Position: 

director 
At arm's length with other 	

	Directors, etc.? 	X Yes ll No 

Last name: First name: 	 Initial: Home address - Street number and name: 

Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term I 

Start Date: End Date: 

City: 	 Prov/Terr Postal code: 

Position: At arm's length with other Telephone number: 	 Date of Birth 

(mandatory for identification): Directors, etc.? 	I Yes II No 

Last name: First name: 	 Initial: Home address - Street number and name: 

Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term 0 

Start Date: End Date: 

City: 	 Prov/Terr: Postal code: 

Position: At arm's length with other Telephone number: 	 Date of Birth 

) 	- 	 (mandatory for identification): Directors, etc.? 	I Yes I No 

Last name: First name: 	 Initial: Home address - Street number and name: 

Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term 0 

Start Date: End Date: 

City: 	 Prov/Terr: Postal code: 

Position: At arm's length with other Telephone number: 	 Date of Birth 

- 	 (mandatory for identification): Directors, etc.? 	I Yes I No 

Last name: First name: 	 Initial: Home address - Street number and name: 

Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term I 

Start Date: End Date: 

City: 	 Prov/Terr: Postal code: 

Position: At arm's length with other Telephone number: 	 Date of Birth 

- 	 (mandatory for identification): Directors, etc.? 	I Yes I No 

Last name: First name: 	 Initial: Home address - Street number and name: 

Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term 0 

Start Date: End Date: 

City: 	 Prov/Terr: Postal code: 

Position: At arm's length with other Telephone number: 	 Date of Birth 

( 	- 	 (mandatory for identification): Directors, etc.? 	II Yes I No 

Last name: First name: 	 Initial: Home address - Street number and name: 

Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term I 

Start Date: End Date: 

City: 	 Prov/Terr: Postal code: 

Position: At arm's length with other Telephone number: 	 Date of Birth 

- 	 (mandatory for identification): Directors, etc.? 	I Yes I No 

T1235 E (09) 
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)11  S")  For Departmental use only  

APAIATION FOR INCOME TAX REGISTRATION 	()
) 	

Registration number 

FOR CANADIAN AMATEUR ATHLfTJAOSCWEI6TIONS '‘ 	/ ,C) i g 	i3,-, 721/   
AND CANADIAN CHARRig§os  ADMINISTRAPON 	,tc}0-1- 	11  /0  7/  q 

CENTR ALE 

, 	- 

PART I - IDENTIFICATION 	 14VENUE 	REVENU 
CANADA 	CANADf 

1. Name of applicant 

CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 	
, 

2. Mailing address (Street and no., P.O. Box or R.R. No.) 

20' Floor, 1500 West Georgia Street 

3. City or town 

Vancouver 

4. Postal code 

V6G 2Z8 

5. Province 

BC 

6. Address at which books and records will be kept 

7. City or town 8. Province 

 

9. Fiscal year-end 	Day 	Month 

J a 	GE, 

Part II - SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

10. Please attached an official copy of each of the governing 

Does your organization have by-laws? 	 Yes 

If yes, please attach an official copy. 

11. Please attach a statement of activities setting out fully the 

be carried on by the applicant to further each of the objectives 

governing documents. 

12. Please attach financial statements for the last completed 

applicant is not yet in operation, you should attach a copy 

income and expenditures, as well as anticipated assets and 

13. Please attach a list of officers showing the full name, address 

or directing officers of the applicant, including, in the case 

of the priest, pastor, minister, or religious leader in charge. 

14. Is the applicant seeking registration as: 	 a charity 

Or 

athletic 

15. Does the applicant own (or intend to own) real property, ie, 

If Yes, please state the name in which title to the real property 

CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

a Canadian 

X 

year 

of a 

of a 

documents 

activities 

liabilities 

land 

No 

and 

or purposes 

or fiscal year 

proposed budget 

for the 

and occupation 

parish or congregation, 

? 

amateur 

association? 

or buildings? 

will be registered. 

under 

set 

programs 

first 

which 

out in 

or 

of all 

of operation. 

year 

the 

to 

its 

estimate 

of 

the 

X  

the 

Yes 

If 

applicant 

of 

operation 

executive 

name 

the 

X  

was established. 

Attached 

Attached 

Attached 

. 

Attached 

No 	 

X  

X 

X  

X  

G
i
l
D
1
1
0
H
d
 



PART III - FOR CHARITIES ONLY 

Only those applying for registration as charities need to answ er questions 16, 17 and 18 

16. Has the applicant been formed for the purpose of using more I han 50% of its income 

to fund other registered charities or other "qualified donees"? 

17. Are 50% or more of the directing officers named in number 13 (front page) related 

to any other person named in the list? If any of the executive or directing officers 
are related by blood, marriage, adoption, common-law relationship or close 

business or corporate ties (eg, business partners, employers and employees), 

please indicate this relationship on the list provided in response to question number 
13 on the front of this form. 

18. To the best of your knowledge, will the applicant receive more 

from one person, or from a group of persons who are "related 
than 50% of its funds 	 Yes 
to each other"? 

No X 

If yes, please explain the funding arrangement. 

PART IV - CERTIFICATION 

19. We hereby certify that the information given in this application and in all documents attached is true and correct 

Director 	 60  

Director 

• 
Yes 

No 
	

X 

Yes 

No 
	

X 

dye,  -;7/  
Signature of authorized officers,a-apfgiea Position or office within organizational structure of 

the applicant 

Date 

It is a serious offence to make false or deceptive statements. 

Print names of two officers whose signatures appear above. 	 Addresses 

0/.1r,  f;'. 	//e-bc,~fc 

 

of 	

 

    

l~vU6 LIfts 	of 			

   

      

	
Home telephone numbers 	 Business telephone numbers 

20. Name, address and telephone number of authorized representative, if different from 19 above: 

Name 



9 
03

1D
91

02
1d

 

• 	
Statement of Activities 

CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

(the "Applicant") 

The Applicant is applying for status as a charitable organization. It will 

work primarily with students for whom English is a second language and whose ability to 

participate in schooling and community opportunities is impeded by their reduced ability 

to communicate easily and accurately in the English language. The Applicant believes 

that learning English requires more than learning simply vocabulary and grammar. It 

believes that a comprehensive understanding of the English language requires 

experiencing and utilizing language in a Canadian cultural and community context. 

The Applicant will provide classroom instruction in the English language 

and wants to supplement this with tutorial sessions working one on one with individuals 

who have need of a tailored educational program. Efforts will also be made to cause 

students to learn and practise their English in community and family settings so that they 

will learn the nuances and different connotations of words and be able to understand and 

speak the vernacular of the English language as well as text book grammar. To the extent 

that the Applicant achieves the funding to acquire computer and audio/visual equipment 

and materials, they will use whatever high tech resources are available for education 

including access to the Internet. This will both improve the means of instruction and 

expose students to usage of the English language in a global context as well as the local 

community. Further, in the 21' Century, students will need written English skills to 

communicate and learn on the Internet. 
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Budget 

First year operations 
THE CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

Receipts 

Fundraising $183,250 

Expenses 

Furniture & Equipment $ 95,250 

Management & Administration 33,000 

Fundraising costs, promotional materials etc. 25,500 

Rent 25,000 

Books 4,500 

$ 183,250 



Revenue Revenu 

Canada 	Canada 

Your file Vofre reference 

Our file Notre reference 

109739 

September 11, 1996 

Dear

NOTIFICATION 0 

Canadian Educa 

REGISTRATION 

ion Forum 

We are pleased to advise that, based on the information supplied, and 

assuming that he activities will be as stated in the application, we 

have determined that the organization qualifies for tax-exempt status as 

a registered charity under paragraph 149(1)(f) of the Income Tax Act. 

We have further determined that the organization is a charitable 

organization because it meets the requirements of subsection 149.1(1) of 

the Act. This designation has some bearing on the operational 

requirements which the charity will have to meet under the Act. If you 

think this designation does not reflect the present state of your 

organization, lease let us know within sixty days of the mailing of 

this letter, giving your reasons. If at a later date, you wish to 

change this designation, you would be required to complete form T2095 to 

apply for re-designation. 

The effective 	to of the registration is July 11, 1996 and the official 

registration n ber assigned to the charity is 1097393-21. Please use 

this number in all correspondence to this office. 

Enclosed are copies of a document titled "Information on the Income Tax 

Act and Registered Charities" and Interpretation Bulletin IT-110R2 which 

will assist you in complying with the operational and filing 

requirements that must be satisfied in order to maintain your registered 

charity status. If you have any questions or require further 

assistance, please do not hesitate to contact our Client Assistance 

Section, (613) 954-0410 or toll free 1-800-267-2384. A referral number 

for GST enquiries may also be obtained from the Client Assistance 

Section. Be sure to indicate the area from which you are calling as 

these numbers vary across Canada. 
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Appendix C of 

Tax Act and Re,  
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appropriate pr 

obligations in 

he charity may be claimed by both corporate and 

rs. In the case of individuals, the amount of the gift 

ed as a credit, pursuant to the definition of "total 

s" in paragraph 118.1(1)(a) of the Income Tax Act (a copy 

ached for your convenience); in the case of a corporate 

should be deducted, pursuant to subparagraph 

of the Income Tax Act (copy attached). Official receipts 

wledge gifts must conform to the requirements set out in 

of the Income Tax Regulations. Please refer to 

he enclosed document titled "Information on the Income 

istered Charities" in this regard. 

n is now registered for federal income-tax purposes. 

ing in which part of Canada it carries out its 

re may be provincial legislation or municipal by-laws 

o the charity's operation. These rules may require you 

or annual returns, or to apply for licenses in 

various aspects of its activities, such as fund-raising. 

iliar with these requirements, you should contact the 

vincial and municipal authorities to determine your 

this regard. 

If the charity s sources of support, or its purposes, character, or 

method of operation change, please advise us immediately so that we may 

consider its e fect on its registered status. Also, please advise if 

the relationsh ps (by blood, marriage or adoption) among the directors 

and officials hange. 

Every year eac registered charity must file a "Registered Charity 

Information Re urn And Public Information Return" (form T3010), the 

related schedu es, and a financial statement within six months following 

its fiscal yea end. As you have indicated that the charity's fiscal 

year end is Ju e 30, its first return should be filed on or before 

December 31, 1"97 for the fiscal period ended June 30, 1997. The 

Departmental mailing of this form is computer-generated based on the 

charity's fiscal year end. The content of the charity information 

return may differ substantially from your current books and records. 

Here are some of the items of information you will have to provide on 

the return: 

• a break 

receipt 

other r 

way of 

own of gifts including those for which "official tax 

" were issued, gifts from foreign organizations and from 

gistered charities, 10-year gifts and capital gifts by 

equest or inheritance; 

• disbursements including amounts spent on fund-raising 

administrative expenditures, political activities and 

spent silecifically on charitable programs; and, 

and other 

amounts 
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• a breakdown of remuneration to executive officers, to employees 

engaged in charitable activities and to employees engaged in 

other activities. 

Should you wish to obtain a copy of the return, you may contact any of 

the Tax Services offices or the Charities Division, in writing, at 400 

Cumberland Street, Ottawa, Ontario, KlA OL5 or by telephoning our toll-

free line at 1-800-267-2384. Although the Return form is forwarded to 

all registered charities for their use and to remind them that a return 

1s required, it is your responsibility to ensure that the charity meets 

its annual filing requirements, without prior notice by the Department. 

Failure to file an information return within this period could result in 

the revocation of the organization's registered status. The charity 

would then lose its tax-exempt status as well as its authority to issue 

official receipts for income tax purposes, and would be subject to a tax 

equal to the value of any remaining assets not disposed of in a 

prescribed manner. 

Because this letter could help resolve any questions about the charity's 

charitable status, you should keep it in your permanent records. 

Yours sincerely, 

A,,,Mrs. P. Sargent 

Charities Examiner 

for Carl Juneau, Acting Director 

Charities Division 

Attachments 
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Canada 
lndustrie 
Canada 

Certificate of Continuance Certificat de prorogation 
Canada Not-for-profit Corporations Act Loi canadienne sur /es organisations a but non 

/ucratlf 

CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

Corporate name ' Denomination de !'organisation 

327909-0 
Corporation number I Numero de · 

!'organisation 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named 

corporation, the articles of continuance of which 

are attached, is continued under section 211 of 

the Canada Not-for-profit Corporations Act. 

JE CER TIFIE que !'organisation susmentionnee, 
dont Jes statuts de prorogation sont joints, a ete 

prorogee en vertu de !'article 211 de la Loi 

canadienne stir !es organisations a but non 

lucratif. 

Virginie Ethier 

Director / Directeur 

2014-11-12 
-bate ofCo0?itlu3.nce (YYvv .. MM~DD) ............ ·-···-··--

Date de prorogation (AAAA-MM-JJ) 

Canada 
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Car,ado 

Canada Not-for-profit Corporations Act (NFP Act} 

Form 4031 

Articles of Continuance (transition) 

To be u&0d only ror a contlnuanca rrom tho Csnada Corp018Uons Act, Pert If. 

Current name of the corporation 

CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

If a change of name Is requested, Indicate proposed corporate name 

NIA 

Corporation number 

3 1 2 I 7 I~- 10 I 9 1- 1 0 

The province or territory In Canada where the registered office Is situated 

I British Columbia 

Minimum and maximum number of directors (for a fixed number, /ndiCBll!l lhe same number In both boxes) 

Mlrtlmurn numbor [D I.Aaxlmum number 0 
Statement of the purpose of tho corporation 

See Attached Schedule 1 

-------·-
Restrictions on the activities that the <:orporatlon may carry on, If any 

There are no restrictions on the activities of the Corporation 

4031 (2011-10) Page 1 of2 Canada 

• 
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Form 4031 

Articles of Con~lnuance (transition) 

The classes, or regional o,. other groups, of members that the corporation Is authorized to establish 

There wlll be one class of membership ln the Corporation. 

Statement regarding tha distribution of property remaining on llquldatlon 

See Attached Schedule 2 

_ _J 
Additional provisions, If any 

See Attached Schedule 2 

I Declaration 

I hereby certify lhat I om a director or 1111 authorized olfrcM o_f_~~e- r,_,o_rp~~~on_ co_ n_tin_u_ing-'--in-!o_ lh_e_N_F_P_Acl ______ _ ___ _ 

Signs/ure --- .....:::'",..=::..--------------

Printl!llms 

Phone number u __ -_________________________ _ 
Not•: A person who makes, or assists In miking, a false or misleading statemllftt la guilty or an offence and llable on summary 
c:onviction to a flna or not more lha11 $!1,000 or to lmprlsonm,nt for a term of not more than 1lx months or to botll (subsecUan 262(2) of 
the NFP Act). 

'-- -----···-- .. ·-·•-•"'' ---------------·-·--------------··-·-
4031(2011 -10) Page 2 of2 



Schedule 1 to Form 4031 

CANADIAN EOUCA TION FORUM 

The Purposes of the Corporation are: 

Corporation No.327909-0 

a) to fund, facilitate, promote and carry out actMtles and programs as well as fund and supply 

equipment and facilities which will promote the advancement of education by providing 

students with intercultura/, language and communication skO!s through classroom 

teaching, tutorial assistance, community interaction and access to advanced educational 

technology such as computers, video materials and the internet; 

b) to fund promote, develop, operate and manage the buildings, equipment and facilities 

required to enable the provislon of post-secondary educational programs and services 

normally offered by academic colleges and universities including research facilities, 

classrooms, meeting rooms, administrative offices and residential facilltles; 

c) to receive gifts. bequests, trusts, funds and property and beneficially, or as a trustee agent. 

to hold. invest, develop, manage, administer and distribute funds and property for the 

purposes of the Corporation, for and to such other organizations as are "qualified donees" 

under the provisions of the Income Tax Act and for such other purposes and activities as 

are authorized for registered charities under the provisions of the Income Tax Act; and 

d) to conduct any and an activities and exercise any and all such powers as are necessary for 

the achievement of the foregoing and in furtherance of the purposes of the Corporation. 

• 
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Schedule 2 To Form 4031 

CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

Corporation No.327909-0 

9. Statement Regarding the Distribution of Property Remaining on Liquidation 

Upon the winding-up or dissolution of the Corporation, the funds and property remaining after the 

payment of all costs, charges and expenses properly incurred in the vvindlng-up or dissolution 

including the remuneration of a liquidator, and after payment to employees of tha Corp0tation of 

any arrears of salarles or wages, and after payment of any debts of the Corporation, shall be 

distributed to such charities, registered under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, or such 

"qualified donees" allowed under the Income Tax as shall be designed by the Board. Any of such 

funds or property which had originally been received for specific purposes shall, whenever 

possible, be distributed to "qualified donees· or charities registered under the provisions of the 

Income Tax Act carrying on work of a similar nature to such specific purposes. 

10. Additional Provisions 

1) The Corporation shall be carried on without the purpose of gain for its members, and any profits 

or other accretions to the Corporation shall be used in furtherance of its purposes. 

2) Directors shall serve without remuneration, and no director shall directly or indirectly receive any 

profi t from his or her position as such, provided that a director may be reimbursed for reasonable 

expenses incurred in performing his or her duties. A director shall not be prohibited from receiving 

compensation for services provided to the corporation In another capacity. 

3) The directors may at any time In their discretion appoint appointed directors who shall hold 

office for a term expiring not later than the close of the next anrual meeting of members but the 

total number of directors so appointed may not exceed one third of the number of directors 

elected at the previous annual meeting of members. 



l+I 
lndusl,y 
Canada 

lndustrle 
Canada 

Canada Not-for-profit Corporations Act (NFP Act) 

Form 4002 

lnltlal Registered Office Address and First Board of Directors 

(To be filed with articles of incctl)Orallatl, con!Jnuanca (tra11sllion,. amalgamation, or continuance (Import)) 

Corporate name 

CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

•••••••-•••••·- ---•-•• •••••••-••••••A•-·-··---·---- -----

a complete address of the registered office (cannot be a po&I office boK} 

Numller end street name 

Directors of the corporation (if 3{J&Ce available ii; lnsufTJclenr, comp/!lte attached schedule) 

First and last name R1;1sldenUal Address (cannol be II po$1 otrlca box} 

Deciaratfon 

1

I hereby certlry !hat I am an lncorporalor or lho new corporaUon, or !hat I am a dlredor or llf1 autr.orlzed o1fk.ar or tho oorporalion 
conliouing in1o or am11lgamaUng under lhe NFP Acl 

Slgnatu;11 ~ 
Print name 

Phonttnumbltf u __ -
Note: A ptraon who makee, or aaalets In making, a false or misleading statem.nt is guilty or 1m olftnce and liable on summary 

convtctlon to a tine of not mcwe lhan $5,000 or to llnprl1onmenl for a term of not more than alx month• or lO both (aubtectlan 2&2(2) of 
the NFP Act). 

4002(2011 -10) Canada 

• 
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Received / re~ue 

BYL.AWN0. 2 

A bylaw relating generally to the conduct of the affairs of: 

1.1 

CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 
PAAT1 

INTERPRETATION 

In the bylaws and the articles of the Corporation, unless the context otherwise requires: 

'Act• means the C8nada Not-For-Profit Corporations Act S.C. 2009, c.23 including the 
Regulatlons made pursuant to the Act, and any statute or regulations that may be 
substituted, as amended from time to time: 

"appointed directors" means only those persons who have become appointed directors In 
accordance with the articles and the bylaws and have not ceased to be appointed directors; 

"articles" means the original or restated articles of incorporation or articles of amendment, 
amalgamation, continuance, reorganization, arrangement or revival of the Corporation; 

'Board" means the directors acting as authorized by the articles and the bylaws in managing 
or supervising the management of the affairs of the Corporation and exercising the powers of 
the Corporation; 

"Board resolution" means: 

(i) a resolution passed at a meeting of the Board by a simple majority of the votes cast 
by those directors entitled to vote at such meeting; or 

Qi) for matters not required by the Act to be dealt with at a meeting, a resolution that has 
been submitted to an of the directors and consented to in writing by an of the 
directors who would have been entitled to vote on it at a meeting; 

"bylaws' means this bylaw and all other bylaws of the Corporation from time to time in force 
and effect; 

'Chair' means a person elected or appointed to the office of Chair in accordance with the 
bylaws but such office holder may, with the approval of the Board, use the title, Chairperson, 
Chairman, Chairwoman or President in substitution for, or in addition to, the title "Chair' ; 

"corporate members" means only those legally incorporated corporations, societies or other 
Incorporated bodies having legal personality who were listed on the Register of Members at 
the time of transition to the Act and who have not since ceased to be members and those 
that have subsequently become members in accordance with the articles and the bylaws and 
have not ceased to be members and a "corporate member" means any one of them; 

"Corporation' means the corporation without share capital incorporated pursuant to Part II of 
the Canada Corporations Act and thereafter contnued under the Act under the name 
"CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM' ; 

"Date of Continuance' means the date the Corporation was continued under the Act. 

'directors· means only those persons whose names were set out in Form 4002 at the time of 
transition to the Act and those persons that have subsequently become directors in 
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accordance with the articles and the bylaws and have not ceased to be directors; 

'elected directors" means only those persons who have become elected directors in 
accordance with the bylaws and have not ceased to be elected directors; 

'Income Tax Act' means the Income Tax Act S.C. 1970-71-72, c. 63 as amended; 

•meeting of members· means an annual meeting of members and a special meeting of 
members; 

•members" means only those persons who were listed on the Register of Members at the 
time of trans~ion to the Act and who have not since ceased to be members and those that 
tiave subsequently become members in accordance with the articles and the bytaws and 
have not ceased to be members and a "member" means any one of them; 

"Members' Moderator• means a person appointed by the members to be the Members' 
Moderator in accordance with these bylaws; 

'Minister of Industry' means the Minister of Industry for Canada from time to time as referred 
to in the Act; 

'ordnary resolution' means 

(i} a resolution passed at a meeting of members of the Corporation by a simple majority 
of the votes cast in person or by proxy by those members entitled to vote at such 
meeting; or 

Qi) for matters not required by the Act to be dealt with at a meeting, a resolution that 
has been submitted to au of the members and consented to in writing by all of the 
members who would have been entitled to vote on it at a meeting of members of the 
Corporation; 

'Patron' means a person who has been appointed a Patron in accordance with the bylaws 
and has not ceased to be a Patron; 

"person" includes an lndMdual, partnership, association, body corporate, trustee. executor, 
administrator and legal representative; 

"proposal" means a proposal submitted by a member of the Corporation that meets the 
requirements of section 163 of the Act: 

"public accountant' means a person apponted as pub~c accountant of the Corporation as 
provided for in the bylaws and in accordance with the Act and who has not ceased to be the 
public accountant; 

"registered address' of a member or director means the address of that person as recorded 
in the register of members or register of directors; 

"Registered Office" means the address of the Registered Office of the Corporation; 

• 
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"Secretary' means a person who has been appointed to the office of Secretary In 
accordance with ths bylaws and has not ceased to be the Secretary; 

·special resolution· means 

(Q a resolution passed at a meeting of members of the Corporation by a majority of two 
thirds of the votes cast in person or by proxy by those members entitled to vote at 
such meeting; or 

uO for mailers not required by the Act to be dealt with at a meeting, a resolution that 
has been submitted to all of the members and consented to in writing by all of the 
members who would have been entitled to vote on it at a meeting of members of the 
Corporation; 

"Treasurer" means a person who has been appointed to the office of Treasurer in 
accordance with the bylaws and has not ceased to be the treasurer. 

1.2 Except where they conflict with the definitions contained i1 the bylaws, the detinitions in the 
Act on the date the bylaws become effective apply to the bylaws. 

1.3 Words incorporating the singular number include the plural and vice versa; words importing 
gender include the masculine, feminine and neuter genders. 

PART2 
MEMBERSHIP 

2.1 Subject to the Act and the articles, membership in the Corporation shall be restricted to 
persons who were listed on the Register of Members at the tlme of transition to the Act and who have not 
since ceased to be members and to those persons who are subsequently admitted as members of the 
Corporation by ordinary resolution which may set out specific terms and criteria of membership. A member 
shall continue as a member until ceasing to be a member pursuant to bylaw 2.3. 

2.2 There shall be one class of members. In the absence of any detenTilnatlon astabllshing a 
specific term for a member, a member shall continue as a member until ceasing to be a member pursuant to 
bylaw 2.3. 

2.3 

(a) 

(b) 

A person shall Immediately cease to be a member of the Corporation: 

upon delivering his or her resignation in writing to the Members' Moderator or the address of 
the Corporation; 

In the case of a corporate member or other entity, upon dissolution. bankruptcy or 
receivership; · 

(c) upon ceasilg to hold the office or meat the crrteria by virtue of which he or she is a member; 

(cl) upon expiration of the term. If any, for which he or she was admitted as a member; 



2.4 

2.5 

(e) 

(Q 

upon being removed; or 

upon his or her death. 

. 4 . 

A member may be removed by ordinary resolution. 

The membership of a person in the Corporation may only be transferred to the Corporation. 

2.6 Subject to the articles and the bylaws, upon any termination of membership, the rights of the 
member including any rights in the property of the Corporation automatically cease to exist. 

2.7 The amount of the membership dues shall be determined by the Board. In the absence of 
any determination of membership dues it shall be deemed that there are no annual or other membership dues. 
Once the amount of any annual membership dues has been determined, that amount shall be deemed to be 
the annual membership dues In each succeeding membership year until such amount is changed. 

PART3 
MEETINGS OF MEMBERS 

3.1 M annual general meeting shall be held at least once in every calendar year and not more 
than 15 months after the holding of the last preceding annual meeting of members but not later than 6 months 
alter the end of the Corporation's preceding financial year. 

3.2 

(a) 

(b) 

Special business is: 

an business at a special general meeting of members except the adoption of rules of order; 
and 

all business that Is transacted at an amual general meeting of members, except: 

(0 the adoption of rules of order; 

(iQ consideration of the financial statements; 

Oiij consideration of the report of the directors; 

Qv) consideration of the report of the public accountant; 

(v) the election of directors; 

(v,) the appointment of the public accountant; 

(v,i) the appointment of the Members' MOderator: and 

(vHO such other business that, under the bytaws or any governing statutes, ought to 
be transacted at an annual meeting of members, or business which is brought 
under consideration by the report of the directors if the report was issued with 
the notice of the meeting. 

• 
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3.3 At each annual meeting of members the members shall appoint from among themselves a 

Members' Moderator, who shall hold office until he or she is re-appointed or his or her successor is appointed 

at the next following annual meeting of members. The Members' Moderator may be removed by ordinary 

resolut ion. 

3.4 The Members ' Moderator may, whenever he or she thinks fit, convene a special meeting of 

members. As required by the Act, the Members' MOderator shan convene a special meeting of members 

upon receipt of a written request requesting such a meeting and signed by at least 5% of the members or a 

lower percentage of members as determined from time to time. 

3.5 Meetings of Members shall be held at the Registered Office of the Corporation or, if the 

Members' Moderator shall so determine, at some other place in Canada or, If all the Members entitled to vote 

at the meeting so resolve generally or for any particular meeting, at some place outside Canada. 

3.6 As required by the Act, a member entitled to vote at an annual meeting of members may 
submit to the Corporation notice of any proposal that the member proposes to raise at the meeting and 

discuss at the meeting any matter with respect to which the member would have been entitled to submit a 
proposal. 

3.7 The member who submitted the proposal shall pay the cost of including the proposal and 

any statement in the notice of meeting at which the proposal is to be presented unless otherwise provided 

by ordinary resolution of the members present at the meeting. 

3.8 Any proposal may include nominations for the election of directors if the proposal is signed 

by not less than 5% of members entitled to vote at the meeting at which the proposal is to be presented or 

a lower percentage of members as determined from time to time. 

3.9 The Members· Moderator shall give notice of a meeting of members to those persons entitled 

to receive notice; 

(a) by telephonic, electronic or other communication facility, not less than 14 nor more than 35 

days before the day on which the meeting is to be held; or 

(b) by mail or personal delivery, not less than 21 nor more than 60 days before the day on which 

the meeting is to be held. 

3.10 Notice of a meeting of members shall specify the place, the day and the hour of the meeting 

and shall contain a reminder of the members' right to appoint a proxy. The notice shall state the general 

nature of any special business to be transacted in sufficient detail to allow the recipient to make a reasoned 
decision thereon. 

3.11 The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting of members to, or the non-receipt of 
notice by, any person entitled to receive notice does not invalidate proceedings al that meeting. 
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PART4 
PROCEEDINGS AT MEETINGS OF MEMBERS 

4. 1 A quorum at a meeting of members shall be a majority of the members entitled to vote and 

they may be either present in person or represented by proxy. 

4.2 No business, other than the election of a chairperson and the adjournment or termination of 

the meeting, shall be conducted at a meeting of members at a time when a quorum is not present. 

4.3 If within 30 minutes from the time appointed for a meeting of members a quorum is not 

present, the meeting shall be terminated. 

4.4 If at any lime during a meeting of members there ceases to be a quorum present, business 

then in progress may be continued. 

4.5 The Members' Moderator shall presk:le as chairperson of all meetings of members; but if at 

any meeting of members the Members' Moderator is not present within 15 minutes after the time appointed 

for the meeting, or requests that he or she not chair that meeting of members, the members present may 

choose one of their number to preside as chairperson of that meeting. 

4.6 If the person presiding as chairperson of a meeting of members wants to step down as 

chairperson for all or part of that meeting, he or she may designate an alternate, hopefully a neutral person, to 
chair such meeting or portion thereof, upon receiving the consent of a majority of the members present at 

such meeting. 

4.7 Unless otherwise required by the bylaws or the Act, all matters to be decided at a meeting of 
members shall be decided by an ordinary resolution. 

4.6 A member is entitled to one vote. 

4.9 A corporate member or other entity which is a member may vote by its duly authorized 

representative who is entitled to speak and vote and in ail other respects exercise the rights of a member and 

that representative shall be reckoned as a member for all purposes in comection with any meeting of the 

Corporation. The chair of a meeting shall be entitled to require any such representative to first produce a 

certified copy of a resolution of the board of directors or other governing body of the corporation, association 
or society appointing him as its representative. 

4.1 O A member chairing a meeting of members may vote but, if he or she does so and the result is 
a tie, shall not be permitted to vote again to break the tie and the resolution being voted on shall be deemed to 
have failed. 

4.11 Voting by proxy is permitted and a member may appoint any person as his or her 

proxyholder provided that. prior to the meeting, the proxy has previously been appointed in writing by the 

member appointing the proxy. However, a permanent proxy or a proxy entitling a person or member to vote 

at other than one meeting and any adjournment of that meeting is void. 

4.12 Voting shall be by show of hands or voice vote recorded by the secretary of the meeting 

unless proxy votes are to be counted or the majority of the members present and eligible to vote determine 

that a secret vote by written ballot is required in which case the written votes will be collected and counted by 

• 
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the Members' Moderator or person appointed by the Members' Moderator. Care will be taken to ensure that 

each member entitled to vote deposits only one baHot into the ballot box. Results of the vote will be 

announced at the meeting. 

4.13 No resolution proposed at a general meeting need be seconded and the person chairing 

such a meeting may move or propose a resolution. 

4.14 A meeting of members may be adjourned from time to time and from place to place. but no 

business shall be transacted at an adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting 

from which the adjournment took place. 

4.15 It is not necessary to give notice of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an 

adjourned meeting except where a meeting is adjourned for more than 14 days, in which case notice of the 

adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of the original meeting. 

PARTS 
DIRECTORS 

5.1 The number of directors shall be consistent with the number specified in the articles. If the 
articles provide for a minimum and maximum number of directors, the Board shall be comprised of the flXed 

number of directors as determined from time to time by Board resolution. Provided further, as required by the 

Act. a corporation deemed a soliciting corporation, shall have a minimum of three directors, at least two of 

whom must not be otr1Cers or employees of the Corporation or its affiliates. 

5.2 A person must be a minimum of 18 years of age and have the capacity under law to contract 

but need not be a member of the Corporation in order to be eligible to be a director of the Corporation. 

5.3 Every director shaU subscribe to and support the purposes of the Corporation. No person 

shall be a director of the Corporation unless duly elected or appointed a director in accordance with the 
bylaws. 

5.4 The persons listed on Form 4002 at the time of transition to the Act shall be the directors of 

the Corporation, and the term of each such director shall expire at the close of the first meeting of members of 
the Corporation following the Date of Continuance. 

5.5 Elected directors shall be elected by the members at a meeting of members and shall take 

office commencing at the close of such meeting. 

5.6 At the request of any candidate, elections may be done by secret ballot with the name of 

each candidate appearing individually on the ballot. Candidates shall be deemed to be elected in order of 

those candidates receiving the most votes. 

5. 7 No member shall vote for more directors than the number of vacant positions for elected 

director. Any ballot on which more names are voted for than there are vacant positions shall be deemed to be 

void. 

5.8 The term of office of elected directors shall normally be three years. However the Board may, 

in its discretion, determine that some or all vacant elected directors' positions shall have a term of less than 

three years, the length of such term to be determined by the Board. Elected directors may serve repeated 
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consecutive terms. 

5.9 As provided in the articles, the directors may at any time In their discretion appoint appointed 
directors who shall hold office for a term expiring not later than the close of the next annual meeting of 
members but the total number of directors so appointed may not exceed one third of the number of directors 
elected at the previous annual meeting of members. An appointed director shall take office immediately upon 
appointment. This provision may only be amended to reproduce wording contained in the Corporation's 
articles from time to time. 

5.1 O Every director shall retire from office at the close of the annual meeting of members in the 
year In which his or her term expires; but if no successor is elected and the result is that the number of 
directors would fall below the minimum number of directors required by the articles, the person previously 
elected or appointed as director continues to hold office as if his or her term is extended until such time as 
successor directors are elected or appointed. 

5.11 The members may by ordinary resolution remove a director before the expiration of such 
director's term of office and may by ordinary resolution elect a person as a replacement director to complete 
the term of the director so removed. 

5.12 Notwithstanding the foregoing bylaws. if a director ceases to hold office during his or her term 
for any reason other than removal as aforesaid, the Board may appoint a person as a replacement director to 
take the place of such director until the close of the next annual meeting of members. 

5.13 

{a) 

{b) 

(c) 

(d) 

A person shall immediately cease to be a director: 

upon delivemg his or her resignation in writing to the Secretary or to the address of the 
Corporation; 

upon his or her death; 

upon being removed as provided for in the bylaws; or 

upon the expiration of his or her term of office. 

5.14 Directors shall serve without remuneration, and no director shall directly Of' indirectly receive 
any profit from his or her position as such, provided that a director may be reimbursed for reasonable 

expenses incurred in the performance of his or her duties. A director shall not be prohibited from receiving 
compensation for services provided to the corporation in another capacity. 

PART6 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD 

6.1 A meeting of the Board may be held at any time and place determined by the Board, 
provided that seven (7) days' notice, or if notice is sent by mail then fourteen (14) days' notice, of such meeting 
shall be sent in writing to each director. However, no formal notice shall be necessary if all directors were 
present at the preceding meeting when the time and place of the meeting were determined or are present at 

the meetrig or waive notice thereof in writing or give a prior verbal waiver to the Secretary. 

6.2 For the purposes of the first meeting of the Board held immediately following the election of a 
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director or directors at a meeting of members, or for the purposes of a meeting of the Board at which a 

director is appointed to the Board, it is not necessary to give notice of the meeting to the newly elected or 

appointed director or directors for the meeting to be property constituted. 

6.3 A director who contemplates being or is temporarily absent from Canada may, whether by 

post or electronic means such as facsimile or email, send or deliver to the address of the Corporation a waiver 
of notice of any meeting of the Board for a period not longer than one year and may, at any time, withdraw the 

waiver in like manner. Until the waiver is withdrawn: 

6.4 

(a) 

(b) 

no notice of meetings of the Board need be sent to that director; and 

any and all meetings of the Board, notice of which has not been given to that director shall, if 

a quorum Is present, be valid and effective. 

On the request of any two directors the Secretary shall convene a meeting of the Board. 

6.5 The quorum of meetings of the Board shall be a simple majority of the directors in office at 
the time when the meeting convenes. 

6.6 No act or proceeding of the Board is invalid by reason only of there being less than the 

prescribed number of directors in office so long as a quorum remains . 

6.7 The Chair shall be chair of all meetings of the Board; save that, if at any meeting the Chair is 

not present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for the meeting to commence, or the Chair requests 

that he or she not chair that meeting, the directors present may choose one of their number to chair that 

meeting. 

6.8 If a person presiding as chair of a meeting of the Board wants to step down as chair for all or 

part of that meeting, he or she may delegate an alternate, hopefuily a neutral person, to chair such meeting or 
portion thereof, and that person shall do so upon receiving the consent of the majority of the directors present 

at such meeting. 

6.9 No resolutions proposed at a meeting of the Board are required to be seconded. The 

chairperson of a meeting may move or propose a resolution. 

6. 1 O Any issue at a meeting of the Board which is not required by the bylaws or the Act to be 

decided by a resolution requiring more than a simple majority shall be decided by a Board resolution. 

6.11 Each member of the Board shall be entitled to one vote on any particular matter. 

6.12 A director chairing a meeting may vote but. if he or she does so vote and the result is a tie, 
shall not be permitted to vote again to break the tie and the resolution being voted on shall be deemed to have 

failed. 

6. 13 A Board resolution in writing which has been deposited with the Secretary is as valid and 

effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Board duly called and constituted . Such Board 

resolution may be in two or more counterparts which together shall be deemed to constitute one resoution in 

writing. Such resolution shall be filed with minutes of the proceedings of the Board and shall be effective on 

the date stated therein or, in the absence of such a date being stated, on the latest date stated on any 
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counterpart. 

PART? 
PATRONS 

7.1 The members may appclnt a person to be the Patron by a resolution which specifies the 
name of the Patron and such provisions and conditions, if any, which attach to the named Patron's term and 
that has been consented to in writing by all of the members who would have been entitled to vote at a meeting 
of members of the Corporation. 

7.2 The function and number of Patrons and the terms of each appointment shall be determined 
by the Board. 

PARTS 
ADVISORY COUNCIL 

8.1 The Board may constitute an Advisory Council to provide advice and counsel to the Board on 
broad issues of policy and profile and may appoint worthy persons to it and determine the terms of each 
appointment. The Board may select and appoint a chair of the Advisory Council, determine his or her title and 
set the terms of his or her duties and responsibilities and duration of appointment. 

8.2 
Council. 

The Board shall determine the size, composition and specific functions of the Advisory 

8.3 The Advisory Council shall not have the legal powers to direct the acts and operations of the 
Corporation and its members wiU not be acting in the capacity of directors of the Corporation. 

8.4 The Advisory Council may hold meetings at such time and place as is determined by the 
Board and shall conform to any rules that may from time to time be imposed on it by the Board. 

PART9 
COMMITTEES 

9.1 The Board may create by Board resolution such standing and special committees of the 
Board as may from time to time be required and appoint such committee members from amongst the 

directors as required by the Act. The Board may delegate any, but not all, of its powers to such committees 
and any such committee shall limit Its activities to the purpose or purposes for wnch it is appointed, and shall 
have no powers except those specifically conferred on it by a Board resolution. Unless specifically designated 
as a standing committee, any special committee so created must be created for a specified time period only. 
Upon completion of the earlier of the specified time period or the task for which it was appointed, a special 
committee shall automatically be dissolved. 

9.2 A committee, in the exercise of the powers delegated to it. shall conform to any rules that 
may from time to time be imposed by the Board, and shall report every act or thing done in exercise of those 
powers at the next meeting of the Board held after it has been done, or at such other time or times as the 
Board directs. 

9.3 The members of a committee may meet and adjourn as they think proper and meetings of 
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committees shall be governed by the rules set out in the bylaws governing proceedings of the Board with the 

necessary changes. 

9.4 Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Board creates a committee but does not delegate any 
of its powers to that committee, such committee may include indMduals that are not directors. Individuals that 
are not directors may be invited to join any committee in an advisory capacity but may not vole on any 

matter that relates to a power of the Board that has been delegated to such committee. 

9.5 A member of a committee may be reasonably remunerated for services rendered in his or her 

capacity as a member of a committee and a member of a committee may be reimbursed for all expenses 
necessarily and reasonably Incurred by him or her while engaged in the affairs of the Corporation, all as 

determined by a Board resolution. 

9.6 Any member of a committee may be removed by a Board resolution . 

PART 10 
DONOR RECOGNITION 

10.1 The Board may constitute various councils, circles, clubs and other forms of association to 

provide and encourage public recognition to donors, supporters and other friends of the Corporation. 

10.2 The Board shall determine the size, composition and specific functions of any such 

associations and determine the qualifications for membershp. 

10.3 The Board may determine the appropriate timing forum for meetings for such associations. 

PART 11 
OFFICERS 

11 .1 At the first meeting of the Board held after the amual meeting of members in each year, the 

Board shall, by a simple majority of the cirectors present, appont from among the directors a Chair. The Chair 

shall be responsible for chairing the meetings of the members and the Board. 

11 .2 Should the Chair for any reason not be able to complete his or her term, the Board shall 

appoint a replacement without delay. 

11.3 The Board shall appoint a Secretary who shall be responsible for making the necessary 

arrangements for: 

(a) the issuance of notices of all meetings of the Board: 

(b) the keeping of minutes of all meetings of the Board; 

(c) the custody and maintenance of all records, registers and dOcuments of 1he Corporation 

except those required to be kept by the Treasurer or Members' Moderator; 

(d) subject to bylaw 15.2, the custody of the corporate seal of the Corporation; and 

(e) the conduct of the correspondence of the Corporation. 



-12 -

11 .4 The Board shaH appoint a Treasurer who shall be responsible for making the necessary 

arrangements for: 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

11.5 

the keeping of such financial records, including books of account, as are necessary to 

comply with the Act;' 

the custody and control of the assets of the Corporation, including the implementation of the 

instructions of the Board as to the Investment of the assets of the Corporation and the 

Corporation's banking transactions; and 

the rendering of financial statements to the directors, members and others when required. 

Arr/ two or more offices of the Corporation may be held by one person. 

11 .6 The Board may appoint and remove such other officers as it deems necessary and determine 

the duties, responsibilities, title, term and remuneration, if any, of all officers. 

11 .7 A person may be removed as an officer by a board resolution. Otherwise, each officer 

appointed by the Board shall hold office until a successor is appointed or unU an earlier resignation is received 

by the Corporation. 

PART12 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

12.1 The Board may select and appoint a chief executive officer of tne Corporation, determine his 
or her title and set his or her duties, responsibilities and terms of employment. 

PART13 

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

13. 1 At the first annual meeting of members foHowing the Date of Continuance and at each annual 

meeting of members thereafter the members may appoint, and when required by the Act shall appoint, a 
pubtic accountant to review the accounts of the Corporation in the manner required by the Act. The public 
accountant shall hold office until he or she is re-appointed or his or her successor is appointed at the next 
following annual meeting of members. 

13.2 A public accountant may be removed by ordinary resolution at a meeting of members of 
which notice specifying the intention to pass such resolution was given. 

13.3 The Board shall fill any vacancy occurring in the office of public accountant and may fix the 
remuneration or any such pub~c accountant. 

13.4 A pubtic accountant shall be promptly informed in writing of appointment or removal. 

13.5 In accordance with the Act, no person shall accept an appointment or consent to be 
appointed as public accountant of the Corporation to replace a public accountant who has resigned, been 

removed or whose tenn of office has expired or is about to expire until the person has requested and received 

from that public accountant a written statement of the reasons for their replacement. A person may accept an 

• 
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appointment or consent to be appointed as a public accountant if, within 15 days after making a request for 
such a statement, no reply has been received. 

13.6 When required by the Act or requested by the members, the public accountant shall review 
the accounts of the Corporation in the manner required by the Act and produce financial statements for report 
to the members at the annual meeting of members each year. 

13.7 The public accountant may attend a meeting of members. 

13.8 The Corporation shall send a copy of the annual financial statements and other documents 
referred to in subsection 172(1) of the Act, or a copy of a publication of the Corporation reproducing the 
Information contained in the documents, to the members unless it has given notice informing the members 
that such documents are available for viewing at its Registered Office and any member may obtain a copy of 
the documents free of charge. The Corporation is not required to send the documents or a summary to a 
member who, in writing, declines to receive such documents. 

14.1 

PART14 
MANAGEMENT OF THE CORPORATION 

The property and the affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by the Board. 

14.2 The Board may exercise all such powers and do all such acts and things as the Corporation 
may exercise and do, and which are not by the bytaws or by statute or otherwise lawfully directed or required 
to be exercised or done by the members in a meeting of members, but subjecl, nevertheless, to the provisions 
of: 

(a) all laws affecting the Corporation; 

(b) the bylaws; and 

(c) rules, not being inconsistent with the bylaws, which are made from time to time by the 
Corporation in a meeting of members. 

14.3 No rule made by the Corporation in a meeting of members invalidates a prior act of the Board 

that would have been valid if that rule had not been made. 

14.4 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

The Board may from time to time on behalf of and in the name of the Corporation: 

raise and borrow money in such manner and amounts. on such security, or without security, 
from such sources and upon such terms and conditions as they think fit; 

guarantee the repayment of money by any other person or corporation or the performance of 
any obligation of any other person or corporation; and 

incur, or secure the payment or repayment of or the performance of. any indebtedness or 
obligation in such manner and upon such terms and conditions in all respects as the 
Directors think flt, and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, by t11e issue of bonds, 
notes, income bond, perpetual or redeemable debentures or any mortgage, charge or other 
security whether specific or floatng, on the undertaking or on the whole or any part of the 
property and assets (both present and future) of the Corporation or indebtedness or other 
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obligation of the Corporation. 

14.5 The Board on behalf of the Corporation may acquire, accept, solicit and receive, by 
purchase, lease, contract. donation, legacy, gift, grant, devise, bequest or otherwise, any kind of real or 
personal property, including without limitation shares in and securities of other corporations, licences, royalties, 
inventions, patents of invention, patent rights, copyrights, trademarks, formulae, processes, know-how and 
other industrial property and similar rights of all kinds; hold, use, control, manage, develop, sell, let, lease, 
license and otherwise deal with and dispose of, or hold as a trustee, all or any such property: and enter into, 
conduct and carry on agreements, trusts, contracts and undertakings in connection therewith or incidental 
thereto for the further attainment of the Corporation's purposes. 

14.6 The Board shall take such steps as it deems necessary to enable the Corporation to receive 
donations, bequests, funds, property, trusts, contracts, agreements and benefits ("collectively referred to 
herein as "assets") for the purpose of furthering the purposes of the Corporation. The Board may accept an 
asset which has a liability attached to it. The Board may postpone conversion and retain any assets in the 
form donated to the Corporation notwithstanding that such assets are not income producing and any asset so 
retained shall be an authorized investment for all purposes of the Corporation and a director shall not be liable 
for any loss resulting from such postponement and retention. The Board in its sole and absolute discretion 
may refuse to accept any donation, bequest, trust, loan, contract or property. 

14.7 The Corporation may invest and deal with the monies of the Corporation not immediately 
required by the Corporation both inside and outside of Canada in such manner as the Board may from time to 
time determine. In investing the funds of the Corporation, the Board shall not be limited to securities and 
investments in which trustees are authorized by law to invest, but may make any investments which in its 
opinion are prudent. In determining whether an investment is prudent, the Board may consider the extent to 
which an investment furthers purposes and funding of the Corporation as well as public good and social 
benefit, in addition to issues of pure economic return. Subject to the provisions of the Act , a director shall not 
be liable for any loss which may result from any such investment. 

14.8 The Board may invest in real and personal property, shares, bonds, debentures and other 
securities, including mutual or other pooled investment funds, and evidences of indebtedness and obUgations 
issued or guaranteed by any individual or entity and in evidences of any interest in respect of any such real and 
personal property, share, bonds debentures and other securities and evidence of indebtedness and 
obligations and the Board may invest and lend money at interest on the security of real or personal property or 
without security and may change or alter any investments, and while the Corporation is the holder or owner 
thereof the Board may, on behalf or the Corporation. exercise an rights, powers and privileges of ownership, 
including all voting rights, if any, with respect thereto. The Board shall be authorized to invest in ·non-qualified 
Investments· and ·non-qualifying securities· as defined in the Income Tax Act. 

14.9 Subject to the Act, the Corporation shall have the power to make expenditures and loans 
whether or not secured or interest bearing for the purpose of furthering the purposes of the Corporation. The 
Corporation shaft also have the power to enter into trust arrangements or contracts for the purpose of 
discharging obligations or conditions either imposed by a person donating, bequeathing, advancing or lending 
funds and property to the Corporation, or assumed by the Corporation in expectation of such donations, 
bequests, advances or loans. Such arrangements or contracts shall be in accordance with the terms and 
conditions that the Board may prescribe. 

• 
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14.10 In order to carry out the purposes of the Corporation the Board may, on behalf of and in the 
name of the Corporation, raise or secure the payment or repayment of money in any manner it decides 
including the granting of guarantees, and in particular, but without limiting the foregoing, by the issue of 
debentures. 

14. 11 The Board shall be entitled, in its discretion, to hold and deposit the funds and other assets of 
the Corp0<ation in one or more accounts, whether co-mingled with other funds and assets or not, in such 
manner as the Board in its discretion may determine from time to time. 

14.12 When the Corporation has received funds and property from an identified donor or other 
person and, on the instructions of such donor or other person, placed the funds and property in an identifiable 
account, the Corporation shall be entitled, in its discretion, to soHcit the advice of such donors or other 
persons, or their representatives, on the application or distribution of the revenues from such account to 
particular charitable purposes or qualified donees. While the Board may consider such advice as to application 
or distribution, the ultimate decision as to the application or distribution must be made in the absolute 
cHscretion of the Board. 

14.13 The Board shall be entitled to retain, rely on the advice of and delegate powers and 
discretions to lawyers, accountants, financial advisors, investment advisors, agents and similar persons as they 
determine may be helpful to assist them in performing their duties and, without limitation, may delegate to an 
investment advisor any and all discretionary investment powers and in doing so shall not be liable. 

14.14 The members may restrict the borrowing powers of the Board. 

14.15 The CorpOl'ation shan be entitled, In Its discretion, to accept and hold funds and property 
from donors and other persons and solicit the advice of the donors or other persons, or their representatives, 
on the retention or Investment of the funds and property transferred to the Corporation by such donors Of 

other persons. In determining whether such an investment is prudent, the Board may consider the extent to 
which an Investment or retention furthers the purposes of the Corporation and encourages further funding of 
the Ccrporation by such donor or other persons. 

PART 15 
EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS 

15.1 The Board may provide a corporate seal for the Corporation and, if provided, shall provide for 
the custody of the seal with the Secretary or for a temporary period, when authorized by a Board resolution, 
with such other person as determined by the Board. The Board shall also have power from time to time to 
destroy a seal and substitute a new seal in its place. 

15.2 The seal of the Corporation shall be affixed only when authorized by the Board. and then only 
in the presence of the person or persons prescribed by the Board, or, if no person or persons are prescribed, 
in the presence of any two directors. 

15.3 Contracts, documents or any instruments in writing requiring the signature of the Corporation 

shall normally be signed by two officers or directors of the Corporation or such other number of officers or 
directors as may be detem1ined from time to time by Board resolution. Further, the Board may from time to 
time by Board resolution appoint a person or persons, any of whom may not be a director or officer, to sign 
specific contracts, documents and instruments in writing. 

J 
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PART16 
NOTICES 

As required by the Act, notice of a meeting of members shall be given to: 

Ervery person shown on the register of members as a member on the day the notice Is given; 

the Board; and 

the public accountant. 

No other person is entitled to be given notice of a meeting of members. 

16.2 Any notice required to be given may be given to a member, a director or a member of a 
committee either personally (by defivery or electronic means such as facsimile or e-mail) or by first class mail 
posted to such person's or representative organization's registered address as required by the act. 

16.3 A notice sent by mail shall be deemed to have been given on the third day following that on 

which the notice was posted. In proving that notice has been given it is sufficient to prove the notice was 
properly addressed and put in a post office receptacle with adequate postage affixed, provided that if there 
shall be, between the time of mailing and the deemed recept of the notice, a mafl strike or other labour dispute 
which might reasonably be expected to delay the delivery of such notice by the mails, then such notice shall 
only be effective when actually received. Any notice deHvered by hand or sent by electronic means such as 
facsimile or e-mail shall be deemed to have been given on the day it was so delivered or sent. 

16.4 If a number of days notice or a notice extending over any other period is required to be given, 
the day the notice is given or deemed to have been given shall not , but the day on which the event for which 
notice Is given shall, be counted in the number of days required. 

PART 17 
MISCELLANEOUS 

17.1 Any meeting of the members, directors. Advisory Council or any committee may also be held, 

or any member, director, Advisory Council member or committee person may participate in any meeting of the 
members, directors, Advisory Council or any committee in which he or she is entitled to participate, by 
conference call or similar communication equipment or electronic means or device provided that all the 
members, directors, Advisory CouncH members or committee persons entitled to attend such meeting 
respectively, have equal access to such means and have consented generally or in respect of a particular 
meeting to conducting the meeting \n this manner. Further, sufficient security measures must be in place, 
such as allocation of indMdual confidential passwords, to allow access to any meeting held by electronic 
means to only those members, directors, Advisory Council members or committee persons entitled to 
participate in such meeting. All members, directors, Advisory Council members or committee persons must be 
able to participate and respond to one anot,her during the meeting. All such members, directors , Advisory 
Council members or committee persons so participating in any such meeting shall be deemed to be present in 
person at the stated location of such meeting and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing 

bylaws, shall be entitled to vote by a voice vote recorded by th~ secretary of such meeting. Further, if all 

members or directors entitled to attend such meeting respectively, have consented generally or in respect of a 
particular meeting, votes on any issue may be oonducted electronically under the direction of the Secretary of 

the Corporation in such a manner as to permit each member or director to communicate adequately. Each 
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member or director, as the case may be, shall receive the same information and motions electronically. If any 
member or director, objects to the specific means of communication to be used for voting on a specific 
matter, then the electronic voting process shall not be followed. A majority of the number of members or 
directors entitled to vote on such specific matter shall respond electronically to the Secretary In order to 
constitute a quorum within seven (7) days from the date of transmission of the motion from the Secretary to 
that member or director. Each member or director will be requested to indicate whether he or she votes tor or 
against the matter to be voted on. Lack of a response within the seven (7) day limit will be counted as an 
abstention. Except where the Act otherwise requires, every matter dealt with electronically shall be decided by 
a majority of votes cast on the matter. The Secretary shall inform each member or director electronically and 
by fax or mail of the outcome of all votes induding the identity of the members or directors voting for, against 
and abstaining with respect to the matter within seven (7) days of the tany of votes. 

17.2 The rules governing when notice Is deemed to have been given set out in the bylaws shall 
apply with the necessary changes to determine when a Board resolution shall be deemed to have been 
submitted to all of the directors and when an ordinary resolution shall be deemed to have been submitted to ail 
of the members. 

17.3 The Corporation shall have the right to subscribe to, become a member of and cooperate 
with any other society, foundation, corporation or association whose purposes or objectives are in whole or in 
part similar to the Corporatil?n's purposes. 

PAAT18 
INDEMNIFICATION 

18. 1 The Corporation hereby acknowledges that each and every director and officer of the 
Corporation shaft be deemed to have assumed office on the express understanding and agreement and 
condition that every director and officer of the Corporation and his or her heirs, personal representatives and 
estate and ettects respectively shall from time to time and at all times be indemnified and saved harmless out 
of the funds of the Corporation for aN amounts and damages which such director or directors or officer or 
officers sustains or Incurs in or about any action, suit or proceeding which Is brought, commenced or 
prosecuted against him, her or them for or in respect of any act, deed, matter or thing whatsoever made, done 
or permitted by him, her or them in or about the execution of the duties of his, her or their office or ottlces, and 
also from and against all other costs, charges and expenses which he, she or they sustain or incur in or about 
or in relation to the affairs of the Corporation except costs, charges or such expenses as are incurred by his, 
her or their own wilful neg~gence or default. 

18.2 The Corporation shall, to the fullest extent permitted by the Act, Indemnify and hold harmless, 
every person heretofore, now or hereafter serving as a director, officer or agent or the Corporation and his or 
her heirs and personal representatives. 

18.3 Expenses Incurred with respect to any claim, action, suit or proceeding against an officer or 
director of the Corporation may be advanced by the Corporation prior to the final disposition thereof In the 
discretion of the Board and upon receipt of an undertaking satisfactory in form and amount to the Board by or 
on behalf of the recipient to repay such amount unless it is ultimately determined that he or she is entitled to 
indemnification hereunder. 

18.4 The Corporation shall apply to the Court for any approval of the Court which may be required 
to make the indemnities herein effective and enforceable. 

- , 
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18.5 The failure of a director or officer of the Corporation to comply with the provisions of the Act 
or of the artides or the bylaws shall not invalidate any indemnity to which he or she is entitled under this Part. 

18.6 The Board may cause the Corporation to purchase and maintain Insurance for the benefit of 
any person and his or her heirs and personal representatives against any liability incurred by that person 
resulting from tim or her acting as a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or as a director or 
officer of any corporation or society because of his or her relationship to the Corporation. 

18. 7 Each director and officer of the Corporation upon being elected or appointed shall be 
deemed to have contracted with the Corporation on the terms of the foregoing indemnities. 

PART19 

BYLAWS 

19.1 Each member, on being admitted to membership is entitled to, and upon his or her request, 
the Corporation shall provide him or her with a copy of the articies and the bylaws of the Corporation. 

19.2 The Articles or the Bylaws may only be added to, amended or repealed by Special 
Resolution. Any addition to, amendment or repeal to the Articles or bylaws is only effective as of the later of: 

(a) The dale on which the Special Resolution is passed; or 

(b) Such later date as may be set out in writing in the SpeciaJ Resolution. 

PART20 
REGISTERED OFFICE 

20. 1 The Registered Olfice of the Corporation shall be located at such address within the place 
designated in the artldes of the Corporation as the directors may from time to time determine. 

"'fl. 
DATED the~ day of 'HOi•l!!l)C!Efl:• , 2014. 

• 
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Corporations Act corporations canadiennes 

C A N A D A 

LETTERS PATENT 

WHEREAS an application has been filed to incorporate a corporation 
under the name 

CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

THEREFORE the Minister of Industry by virtue of the powers vested 
in him by the Canada Corporations Act, constitutes the applicants 
and such persons as may hereafter become members in the corporation 
hereby created, a body corporate and politic in accordance with the 
provisions of the said Act. A copy of the said application is 
attached hereto and forms part hereof. 

Date of Letters Patent - July 11, 1996 

GIVEN under the seal of office of the Minister of Industry. 

for the Minister of Industry 

RECORDED 17th July, 1996 

File Number: 327909-0 

~~\\...9-
Deputy Registrar General of Canada 

Canada IC 3276(11 -94)(cca 2482) 
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APPLICATION FOR INCORPORATION OF A CORPORATION WITHOUT SHARE 

CAPITAL UNDER PART II OF THE CANADA CORPORATIONS ACT 

To the Minister of Industry Canada 

The undersigned hereby apply to the Minister of Industry for the grant of a charter by 

letters patent under the provisions of Part II of the Canada Corporations Act constituting the 

undersigned, and such others as may become members of the Corporation thereby created, a 

body corporate and politic under the name of 

CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

The undersigned have satisfied themselves and are assured that the proposed name 

under which incorporation is sought is not the same or similar to the name under which any other 

company, society, association or firm, in existence is carrying on business in Canada or is 

incorporated under the laws of Canada or any province thereof or so nearly resembles the same 

as to be calculated to deceive, and that it is not a name which is otherwise on public grounds 

objectionable. 

The applicants are individuals of the full age of eighteen years with power under law to 

contract. The name, occupation and address of each of the applicants is as follows: 

Jacqie Thachuk 

Susan Masi 

Doug Schulz 

The above named will be the first directors of the Corporation. 
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The objects of the Corporation are: 

a) to fund, facilitate, promote and carry out activities and programs as well as fund and supply 

equipment and facilities which will promote the advancement of education by providing 

students with intercultural, language and communication skills through classroom teaching, 

tutorial assistance, community interaction and access to advanced educational technology 

such as computers, video materials and the Internet; 

b) to receive gifts, bequests, trusts, funds and property and beneficially, or as a trustee agent, to 

hold, invest, develop, manage, administer and distribute funds and property for the purposes 

of the Corporation, for and to such other organizations as are "qualified donees" under the 

provisions of the Income Tax Act and for such other purposes and activities as are authorized 
for registered charities under the provisions of the Income Tax Act; and 

c) to conduct any and all activities and exercise any and all such powers as are necessary for 

the achievement of the foregoing and in furtherance of the objects of the Corporation. 

IV 

The operations of the Corporation may be carried on throughout Canada and elsewhere. 

V 

the head office of the Corporation is to be situated is in 

the in the Province of British Columbia. 

VI 

Upon the winding-up or dissolution of the Corporation, the funds and property remaining 

after the payment of all costs, charges and expenses properly incurred in the winding-up or 

dissolution including the remuneration of a liquidator, and after payment to employees of the 

Corporation of any arrears of salaries or wages, and after payment of any debts of the 

Corporation, shall be distributed to such charities, registered under the provisions of the Income 
Tax Act, or such "qualified donees" allowed under the Income Tax as shall be designated by the 
Board. Any of such funds or property which had originally been received for specific purposes 

shall, wherever possible, be distributed to "qualified donees" or charities registered under the 
provisions of the Income Tax Act carrying on work of a similar nature to such specific purposes. 

VII 

The by-laws of the Corporation shall be those filed with the application for letters patent 
until repealed, amended, altered or added to. 
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VIII 

The Corporation is to carry on its operations without pecuniary gain to its members and 
any profits or other accretions to the Corporation are to be used in promoting its objects. 

DATED at Sc.:czec--Ni , in the Province of British Columbia this Shday of 
July, 1996. 

_/51A/CQIE itiACHUK 

SUSAN MASI 

DOUG SCHULZ 
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BYLAWN0.1 

~ 

A bylaw relating generally to the conduct of the affairs of: 

1.1 

requires: 

CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM 

PART 1 

INTERPRETATION 

In these bylaws and the letters patent of the Corporation, unless the context otherwise 

"admittance resolution" means a resolution that has been consented to in writing by all of 

the members who would have been entitled to vote at a meeting of members of the 

Corporation which specifies the name of a proposed member, such provisions and 

conditions, if any, which attach to the named member's admission to membership, and the 

specified term, if any, of the member's term of membership; 

"appointed directors" means only those persons who have become appointed directors in 
accordance with these bylaws and have not ceased to be appointed directors; 

"Board" means the directors acting as authorized by the letters patent and these bylaws in 

managing or supervising the management of the affairs of the Corporation and exercising 

the powers of the Corporation; 

"Board resolution" means: 

(i) a resolution passed at a meeting of the Board by a simple majority of the votes cast 

by those directors entitled to vote at such meeting; or 

(ii) a resolution that has been submitted to all of the directors and consented to in 

writing by all of the directors who would have been entitled to vote on it in person at 

a meeting of the Board; 

"bylaws" means this bylaw and all other bylaws of the Corporation from time to time in force 

and effect; 

"Canada Corporations Acf' means the Canada Corporations Act R.S.C. 1970, c. C-32 as 

amended from time to time; 

"Chair'' means a person elected or appointed to the office of Chair in accordance with these 

bylaws but such office holder may, with the approval of the Board, use the title, 

Chairperson, Chairman, Chairwoman or President in substitution for, or in addition to, the 

title "Chair'' ; 

"Corporation" means the corporation without share capital incorporated under the Canada 

Corporations Act having the name CANADIAN EDUCATION FORUM; 

"directors" means only those persons who have become directors in accordance with the 

letters patent and the bylaws and have not ceased to be directors; 

"elected directors" means only those persons who have become elected directors in 
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accordance with these bylaws and have not ceased to be elected directors; 

"founding directors" are the first directors who are the applicants for incorporation; 

"  director'' means a person appointed as the  director in accordance with these 

bylaws; 

"Income Tax Acf' means the Income Tax ActS.C. 1970-71-72, c. 63 as amended; 

"letters patent" means the letters patent incorporating the Corporation as from time to time 

amended and supplemented by supplementary letters patent; 

"meeting of members" means an annual meeting of members and a special meeting of 

members; 

"members" means only those persons who have become members in accordance with 

these bylaws and have not ceased to be members; 

"Members' Moderator'' means a person appointed by the members to be the Members' 

Moderator in accordance with these bylaws; and 

"Minister of Industry" means the Minister of Industry in Ottawa, Ontario , from time to time as 

referred to in the Canada Corporations Act, 

"ordinary resolution" means 

(i) a resolution passed at a meeting of members of the Corporation by a simple 

majority of the votes cast in person or by proxy by those members entitled to vote 

at such meeting; or 

(i i) a resolution that has been submitted to all of the members and consented to in 

writing by all of the members who would have been entitled to vote on it at a 

meeting of members of the Corporation; 

"Patron" means a person who has been appointed a Patron in accordance with these 

bylaws and has not ceased to be a Patron; 

"registered address" of a member or director means the address of that person as recorded 

in the register of members or register of directors; 

"Secretary" means a person who has been appointed to the office of Secretary in 

accordance with these bylaws and has not ceased to be the Secretary; 

." means the society incorporated under the 
Society Act of British Columti,a having the name "   

". 

1.2 Except where they confl ict with the definitions contained in these bylaws, the definitions in 

Part II of the Canada Corporations Act on the date these bylaws become effective apply to these bylaws. 



- 3 -

1.3 Words incorporating the singular number include the plural and vice versa; words importing 

gender include the masculine, feminine and neuter genders; and words importing a person include an 

individual, partnership, association, body corporate, trustee, executor, administrator and legal 

representative. 

PART2 

MEMBERSHIP 

2.1 Subject to the Canada Corporations Act and the letters patent, membership in the 

Corporation shall be restricted to the applicants for incorporation and to those persons who are admitted as 

a member of the Corporation by an admittance resolution and who have consented in writing to their 

admittance pursuant to the provisions and conditions specified in the admittance resolution. 

2.2 The term of a person admitted as a member by virtue of being an applicant for 

incorporation shall be one year. The term of a person admitted pursuant to an admittance resolution shall 

begin on the date that the admittance resolution is signed by the member to indicate acceptance and lodged 

with the Secretary and shall continue for the term set out in the admittance resolution . 

2.3 

2.4 

There shall be one class of members. 

A person shall immediately cease to be a member of the Corporation: 

(a) upon delivering his or her resignation in writing to the Members' Moderator or the 

address of the Corporation; 

(b) in the case of a corporation, society or association, upon dissolution, bankruptcy or 

receivership; or 

( c) upon ceasing to hold the office by virtue of which he or she is a member; 

(d) upon expiration of the term for which he or she was admitted as a member; 

(e) upon being removed ; or 

(f) upon his or her death. 

2.5 A member may be removed by ordinary resolution unless otherwise specified in such 

member's admittance resolution . 

2.6 The membership of a person who is a member of the Corporation by virtue of being an 

applicant for incorporation is not transferable. The membership of a person admitted by admittance 

resolution may be transferable as provided for in the terms and conditions contained in the members' 

admittance resolution . 

2.7 The amount of the membership dues shall be determined by the Board . In the absence of 

any determination of membership dues it shall be deemed that there are no annual or other membership 

dues. Once the amount of any annual membership dues has been determined, that amount shall be 

deemed to be the annual membership dues in each succeeding membership year until such amount is 

changed. 

2.8 All members shall be in good standing except a member who has received written notice 
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of resolution passed by a majority of the directors of the ., 
delivered in person or by double registered mail to his or her registered address and to the Members' 
Moderator, stating that he or she is not in good standing. Such person shall continue to not be in good 
standing until written notice of a resolution passed by a majority of the directors of the  

 that he or she is in good standing is delivered to such member and the 

Members' Moderator. 

PART3 
MEETINGS OF MEMBERS 

3.1 The first annual meeting of members shall be held not more than 18 months after the date 
of incorporation, and thereafter an annual meeting of members shall be held at least once in every calendar 
year and not more than 15 months after the holding of the last preceding annual meeting of members. 

3.2 

(a) 

(b) 

Special business is: 

all business at a special general meeting of members except the adoption of rules of order; 

and 

all business that is transacted at an annual general meeting of members, except: 

(i) the adoption of rules of order; 

(ii) consideration of the financial statements; 

(iii) consideration of the report of the directors; 

(iv) consideration of the report of the auditor; 

(v) the election or appointment of directors; 

(vi) the appointment of the Members' Moderator; 

(vii) the appointment of the auditor; and 

(viii) such other business that, under these bylaws or any governing statutes, 
ought to be transacted at an annual meeting of members, or business which 
is brought under consideration by the report of the directors if the report was 
issued with the notice of the meeting. 

3.3 At the first annual meeting of members and at each annual meeting of members thereafter 

the members shall appoint from among themselves a Members' Moderator, who shall hold office until he or 

she is re-appointed or his or her successor is appointed at the next following annual meeting of members. 

3.4 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

The Members' Moderator shall be·responsible for making the necessary arrangements for: 

the issuance of notices of meetings of members; 

the keeping of minutes of all meetings of members; and 

the maintenance of the register of members. 



e - 5 -

3.5 The Members' Moderator may be removed by an ordinary resolution. 

3.6 The Members' Moderator may, whenever he or she thinks fit, convene a special meeting of 

members. The Members' Moderator shall convene a special meeting of members upon receipt of a written 

request requesting such a meeting and signed by at least 5% of the members. 

3.7 Meetings of members shall be held at the registered office of the Corporation or, if the 

Members' Moderator shall so determine, at some other place in Canada or, if the members entitled to vote at 

the meeting so resolve generally or for any particular meeting, at some place outside Canada. 

3.8 The Members' Moderator shall give not less than 14 days nor more than 60 days written 

notice of a meeting of members to those persons entitled to receive notice; but those persons may waive or 

reduce the period of notice for a particular meeting by unanimous consent in writing. 

3.9 Notice of a meeting of members shall specify the place, the day and the hour of the meeting 

and shall contain a reminder of the members' right to appoint a proxy. The Notice shall state the general 

nature of any special business to be transacted in sufficient detail to allow the recipient to make a reasoned 

decision thereon. 

3.1 O The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting of members to, or the non-receipt of 

notice by, any person entitled to receive notice does not invalidate proceedings at that meeting. 

PART4 
PROCEEDINGS AT MEETINGS OF MEMBERS 

4.1 A quorum at a meeting of members shall be a majority of the members either present in 

person or represented by proxy. 

4.2 No business, other than the election of a chairperson and the adjournment or termination of 

the meeting, shall be conducted at a meeting of members at a time when a quorum is not present. 

4.3 If within 30 minutes from the time appointed for a meeting of members a quorum is not 

present, the meeting , if convened on the requisition of members, shall be terminated; but in any other case, 

it shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week, at the same time and place, and if, at the 

adjourned meeting , a quorum is not present within 30 minutes from the time appointed for the meeting, the 

members present shall constitute a quorum. 

4.4 If at any time during a meeting of members there ceases to be a quorum present, business 

then in progress shall be suspended until there is a quorum present or until the meeting is adjourned or 

terminated. 

4.5 The Members' Moderator shall preside as chairperson of all meetings of members; but if at 

any meeting of members the Members' Moderator is not present within 15 minutes after the time appointed 

for the meeting, or requests that he or she not chair that meeting of members, the members present may 

choose one of their number to preside as chairperson of that meeting. 

4.6 If the person presiding as chairperson of a meeting of members wants to step down as 

chairperson for all or part of that meeting, he or she may designate an alternate, hopefully a neutral person , 

to chair such meeting or portion thereof, upon receiving the consent of a majority of the members present at 

such meeting. 

4.7 Unless otherwise required by the bylaws or the Canada Corporations Act, all matters to be 
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decided at a meeting of members shall be decided by an ordinary resolution. 

4.8 A member in good standing is entitled to one vote. 

4.9 A corporation , association or society which is a member may vote by its duly authorized 

representative who is entitled to speak and vote and in all other respects exercise the rights of a member 

and that representative shall be reckoned as a member for all purposes in connection with any meeting of 

the Corporation. The chairman of a meeting shall be entitled to require any such representative to first 

produce a certified copy of a resolution of the board of directors or other governing body of the corporation, 

association or society appointing him as its representative. 

4.10 A member chairing a meeting of members may vote but, if he or she does so and the result 

is a tie, shall not be permitted to vote again to break the tie and the resolution being voted on shall be 

deemed to have failed . 

4.11 Voting shall be by show of hands or voice vote recorded by the secretary of the meeting 
unless proxy votes are to be counted or the majority of the members present and eligible to vote shall 

determine that a secret vote by written ballot is required. 

4.12 No resolution proposed at a general meeting need be seconded and the person chairing 

such a meeting may move or propose a resolution. 

4.13 Voting by proxy is permitted and a member may appoint any person as his or her 

proxyholder provided that, prior to the meeting, the proxy has previously been appointed in writing by the 

member appointing the proxy. However, a permanent proxy or a proxy entitling a person or member to vote 

at other than one meeting and any adjournment of that meeting is void. 

4.14 A meeting of members may be adjourned from time to time and from place to place, but no 

business shall be transacted at an adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting 

from which the adjournment took place. 

4.15 It is not necessary to give notice of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at 

an adjourned meeting except where a meeting is adjourned for more than 14 days, in which case notice of 

the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of the original meeting. 

4.16 A resolution in writing which has been submitted to all the members and signed by all of the 

members who would have been entitled to vote on it at a meeting of members is as valid and effectual as if it 

had been passed at a meeting of members duly called and constituted. Such a resolution may be in two or 

more counterparts which together shall be deemed to constitute one resolution in writing . Such a resolution 

shall be filed with minutes of the proceedings of the members and shall be effective on the date stated 

therein or in the absence of such a date being stated, on the latest date stated on any counterpart. 

PARTS 

DIRECTORS 

5.1 The number of directors shall be such number, not being less than three and not being 

more than twenty-one, as may be determined from time to time by ordinary resolution . Provided, however, 

that the number of directors set from time to time by ordinary resolution shall provide for the  directors 

who may or may not be appointed by the  in accordance with these 
bylaws. 

5.2 A person need not be a member of the Corporation to be eligible to be a director of the 
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Corporation. 

5.3 Every director shall subscribe to and support the objects of the Corporation. No person 

shall be a director of the Corporation unless duly elected or appointed a director in accordance with these 

bylaws. 

5.4 The applicants for incorporation shall be the first directors of the Corporation, known as 

founding directors, whose term of office shall be until the first annual meeting of members. 

5.5 Elected directors shall be elected by the members at an annual meeting of members and 

shall take office commencing at the close of such meeting. 

5.6 Elections shall be done by secret ballot with the name of each candidate appearing 

individually on the ballot. Candidates shall be deemed to be elected in order of those candidates receiving 

the most votes. 

5. 7 No member shall vote for more directors than the number of vacant positions for elected 

director. Any ballot on which more names are voted for than there are vacant positions shall be deemed to 

be void . 

5.8 The term of office of elected directors shall normally be three years. However the Board 

may, in its discretion, determine that some or all vacant elected directors' positions shall have a term of less 

than three years, the length of such term to be determined by the Board. Directors may be elected to two 

consecutive terms but then must cease to be a director for at least one year before being eligible for re

election. 

5.9 The members may at any time in their discretion appoint appointed directors for a term of 

one year. Where an appointed director is appointed at an annual meeting of members, the term of such an 

appointed director shall commence at the close of such meeting. Where an appointed director is appointed 

at a meeting of members other than an annual meeting of members such director shall take office 

immediately upon appointment, but for the purpose of calculating the duration of the term of such director, 

the term shall be deemed to have commenced at the close of the annual meeting of members next following 

such appointment. 

5.10 Appointed directors may be appointed by name or by virtue of holding a particular office or 

position of employment and may serve repeated consecutive terms. 

5.11 The directors of the  may, by directors resolution, 

at any time appoint one or two persons to serve as  directors each for a term of one year at their 

discretion. The  directors shall take office immediately upon receipt of written notice of appointment 

by the Secretary of the Corporation. For the purpose of calculating the duration of the term of the  

directors, their terms shall be deemed to have commenced at the close of the annual meeting of members 

next following such appointment. 

5.12 The  directors serve at the pleasure of the directors of the  

 and may serve repeated consecutive terms. 

5.13 Every director shall retire from office at the close of the annual meeting of members in the 

year in which his or her term expires; but if no successor is elected or appointed and the result is that the 

number of directors would fall below three, the person previously elected or appointed as director continues 

to hold office if his or her term is extended until such time as successor directors are elected or appointed. 
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5.14 The members may by ordinary resolution remove a director before the expiration of such 

director's term of office and may by ordinary resolution appoint a person as a replacement director to 

complete the term of the director so removed. 

5.15 Notwithstanding the foregoing bylaws, if a director ceases to hold office during his or her 

term for any reason other than removal as aforesaid, the Board may appoint a person as a replacement 

director to take the place of such director until the close of the next annual meeting of members. 

5.16 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

A person shall immediately cease to be a director: 

upon delivering his or her resignation in writing to the Secretary or to the address of the 

Corporation; 

upon his or her death; 

upon ceasing to hold the office by virtue of which he or she is a director; 

upon being removed as provided for in these bylaws; or 

upon the expiration of his or her term of office. 

5.17 A director may hold any office or place of profit in the Corporation in conjunction with his or 

her office of director for the period and on such terms as the Board determines. Subject to the Canada 

Corporations Act, no director shall be disqualified by such office from contracting with the Corporation. 

5.18 A director may be reasonably remunerated for services rendered in his or her capacity as a 

director and a director may be reimbursed for all expenses necessarily and reasonably incurred by him or 

her while engaged in the affairs of the Corporation , all as determined by ordinary resolution . 

PART6 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD 

6.1 A meeting of the Board may be held at any time and place determined by the Board, 

provided that seven (7) days' notice, or if notice is sent by mail then fourteen (14) days' notice, of such 

meeting shall be sent in writing to each director. However, no formal notice shall be necessary if all directors 

were present at the preceding meeting when the time and place of the meeting were determined or are 

present at the meeting or waive notice thereof in writing or give a prior verbal waiver to the Secretary. 

6.2 For the purposes of the first meeting of the Board held immediately following the 

appointment or election of a director or directors at a meeting of members, or for the purposes of a meeting 

of the Board at wh ich a director is appointed to the Board, it is not necessary to give notice of the meeting to 

the newly elected or appointed director or directors for the meeting to be properly constituted. 

6.3 A director who contemplates being or is temporarily absent from Canada may, whether by 

letter, telegram, telex or cable, send or deliver to the address of the Corporation a waiver of notice of any 

meeting of the Board for a period not longer than one year and may, at any time, withdraw the waiver in like 
manner. Until the waiver is withdrawn: 

(a) no notice of meetings of the Board need be sent to that director; and 

(b) any and al l meetings of the Board, notice of which has not been given to that director shall, 

if a quorum is present, be valid and effective. 
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6.4 On the request of any two directors the Secretary shall convene a meeting of the Board. 

6.5 The quorum of meetings of the Board shall be a simple majority of the directors in office at 

the time when the meeting convenes. 

6.6 No act or proceeding of the Board is invalid by reason only of there being less than the 

prescribed number of directors in office so long as a quorum remains. 

6.7 The Chair shall be chair of all meetings of the Board; save that, if at any meeting the Chair 

is not present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for the meeting to commence, or the Chair requests 

that he or she not _chair that meeting , the directors present may choose one of their number to be 

chairperson of that meeting. 

6.8 If a person presiding as chair of a meeting of the Board wants to step down as chair for all 

or part of that meeting, the chair may delegate an alternate, hopefully a neutral person, to chair such 
meeting or portion thereof, and that person shall do so upon receiving the consent of the majority of the 

directors present at such meeting. 

6.9 All resolutions proposed at a meeting of the Board must be seconded. The chairperson of 

a meeting may move or propose a resolution. 

6.10 Any issue at a meeting of the Board which is not required by these bylaws or the Canada 

Corporations Act to be decided by a resolution requiring more than a simple majority shall be decided by a 

Board resolution. 

6.11 Each member of the Board shall be entitled to one vote on any particular matter. 

6.12 A director chairing a meeting may vote but, if he or she does so vote and the result is a tie, 

shall not be permitted to vote again to break the tie and the resolution being voted on shall be deemed to 

have failed. 

6.13 A Board resolution in writing which has been signed by all the directors and deposited with 

the Secretary is as valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Board duly called and 

constituted . Such Board resolution may be in two or more counterparts which together shall be deemed to 

constitute one resolution in writing . Such resolution shall be fi led with minutes of the proceedings of the 

Board and shall be effective on the date stated therein or, in the absence of such a date being stated, on the 

latest date stated on any counterpart. 

7.1 

Corporation. 

7.2 

PART? 

PATRONS 

The Board may appoint prominent persons and office holders to be Patrons of the 

The function and number of Patrons and the terms of each appointment shall be 

determined by the Board. 
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PARTS 

ADVISORY COUNCIL 

8.1 The Board may constitute an Advisory Council to provide advice and counsel to the Board 

on broad issues of policy and profile and may appoint appropriate persons to it and determine the terms of 

each appointment. 

8.2 

Council. 

The Board shall determine the size, composition and specific functions of the Advisory 

8.3 The Advisory Council shall not have the legal powers to direct the acts and operations of 

the Corporation and its members shall not be directors of the Corporation. 

8.4 The Advisory Council may hold meetings at such time and place as is determined by the 

Board and shall conform to any rules that may from time to time be imposed on it by the Board. 

PART9 

COMMITIEES 

9.1 The Board may create such standing and special committees of the Board as may from 

time to time be required which may be in whole or in part composed of directors as the Board thinks fit. The 

Board may delegate any, but not all, of its powers to such committees and any such committee shall limit its 

activities to the purpose or purposes for which it is appointed, and shall have no powers except those 

specifically conferred on it by a Board resolution . Unless specifically designated as a standing committee, 

any special committee so created must be created for a specified time period only. Upon completion of the 

earlier of the specified time period or the task for which it was appointed, a special committee shall 

automatically be dissolved. 

9.2 A committee, in the exercise of the powers delegated to it, shall conform to any rules that 

may from time to time be imposed by the Board, and shall report every act or thing done in exercise of those 

powers at the next meeting of the Board held after it has been done, or at such other time or times as the 
Board directs. 

9.3 The members of a committee may meet and adjourn as they think proper and meetings of 

committees shall be governed mutatis mutandis by the rules set out in these bylaws governing proceedings 

of the Board. 

9.4 A member of a committee may be reasonably remunerated for services rendered in his or 

her capacity as a member of a committee and a member of a committee may be reimbursed for all 

expenses necessarily and reasonably incurred by him or her whi le engaged in the affairs of the Corporation, 

all as determined by a Board resolution. 

9.5 Any member of a committee may be removed by a Board resolution . 

PART10 

OFFICERS 

10.1 At the first meeting of the Board held after the annual meeting of members in each year, the 

Board shall , by a simple majority of the directors present, appoint from among the directors a Chair. The 

Chair shall be responsible for chairing the meetings of the Board. 

10.2 Should the Chair for any reason not be able to complete his or her term, the Board shall 
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appoint a replacement without delay. 

10.3 The Board shall appoint a Secretary who shall be responsible for making the necessary 

arrangements for: 

(a) the issuance of notices of meetings of the Board; 

(b) the keeping of minutes of all meetings of the Board; 

(c) the custody of all records and documents of the Corporation except those required to be 

kept by the Members' Moderator or the Treasurer; 

(d) subject to bylaw 14.2, the custody of the corporate seal of the Corporation; and 

(e) the conduct of the correspondence of the Corporation. 

10.4 The Board shall appoint a Treasurer who shall be responsible for making the necessary 

arrangements for: 

(a) 

(b) 

10.5 

the keeping of such financial records, including books of account, as are necessary to 

comply with the Canada Corporations Act, and 

the rendering of financial statements to the directors, members and others when required. 

Any two or more offices of the Corporation may be held by one person. 

10.6 The Board may appoint and remove such other officers as it deems necessary and 

determine the duties, responsibilities, title, term and remuneration , if any, of all officers. 

10. 7 A person may be removed as an officer by a resolution passed at a meeting of the Board 

by a majority of not less than 75% of the directors present. Otherwise, each officer appointed by the Board 

shall hold office until a successor is appointed or until an earlier res ignation is received by the Corporation. 

PART 11 

AUDITOR 

11 .1 At the first annual meeting of members and at each annual meeting of members thereafter 

the members shall appoint an auditor to audit the accounts of the Corporation, who shall hold office until he 

or she is re-appointed or his or her successor is appointed at the next following annual meeting of members. 

11 .2 The Board may fill any casual vacancy occurring in the office of auditor and fix the 

remuneration of any such auditor. 

11.3 An auditor may be removed by a resolution passed by at least two-thirds of the votes cast 

at a meeting of members of which notice specifyir.g the intention to pass such resolution was given. 

11.4 

11 .5 

An auditor shall be promptly informed in writing of appointment or removal. 

The auditor may attend a meeting of members. 
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PART 12 - CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

12.1 The Board may select and appoint a chief executive officer of the Society, determine his or 

her title and set the terms of his or her duties, responsibilities and employment. 

PART13 

MANAGEMENT OF THE CORPORATION 

13.1 The property and the affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by the Board. 

13.2 The Board may exercise all such powers and do all such acts and things as the 

Corporation may exercise and do, and which are not by these bylaws or by statute or otherwise lawfully 

directed or required to be exercised or done by the members in a meeting of members, but subject, 

nevertheless, to the provisions of: 

(a) all laws affecting the Corporation; 

(b) these bylaws; and 

(c) rules , not being inconsistent with these bylaws, which are made from time to time by the 

Corporation in a meeting of members. 

13.3 No rule made by the Corporation in a meeting of members invalidates a prior act of the 

Board that would have been valid if that rule had not been made. 

13.4 Subject to the Canada Corporations Act, the Corporation shall have the power to make 

expenditures and loans whether or not secured or interest bearing for the purpose of furthering the purposes 

of the Corporation. The Corporation shall also have the power to enter into trust arrangements or contracts 

for the purpose of discharging obligations or conditions either imposed by a person donating, bequeathing, 

advancing or lending funds and property to the Corporation, or assumed by the Corporation in expectation of 

such donations, bequests, advances or loans. Such arrangements or contracts shall be in accordance with 

the terms and conditions that the Board may prescribe. 

13.5 The Board shall take such steps as it deems necessary to enable the Corporation to 

receive donations, bequests, funds, property, trusts, contracts, agreements and benefits for the purpose of 

furthering the purposes of the Corporation. The Board in its sole and absolute discretion may refuse to 

accept any donation, bequest, trust, loan, contract or property. 

13.6 The Corporation may invest and deal with the monies of the Corporation not immediately 

required by the Corporation in such manner as the Board may from time to time determine. In investing the 

funds of the Corporation, the Board shall not be limited to securities and investments in which trustees are 

authorized by law to invest, but may make any investments which in its opinion are prudent. In determining 

whether an investment is prudent, the Board may consider the extent to which an investment furthers 

purposes and funding of the Corporation in adc!tion to issues of pure economic return. Subject to the 
provisions of the Canada Corporations Act, a director shall not be liable for any loss which may result from 

any such investment. 
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PART14 

EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS 

14.1 Contracts, documents or any instruments in writing requ1nng the signature of the 

Corporation shall be signed by two directors of the Corporation. However, the Board may from time to time 

by resolution appoint a person or persons, on behalf of the Corporation, to sign specific contracts, 

documents and instruments in writing . 

14.2 The Board shall provide a corporate seal for the Corporation, and shall provide for the 

custody of the seal with the Secretary or for a temporary period , when authorized by a Board resolution, with 

such other person as determined by the Board. The Board shall also have power from time to time to 

destroy a seal and substitute a new seal in its place. 

14.3 

Corporation . 

The seal, an impression whereof is stamped in the margin hereof, shall be the seal of the 

14.4 The seal of the Corporation shall be affixed only when authorized by the Board, and then 

only in the presence of the person or persons prescribed in the resolution , or, if no person or persons are 

prescribed, in the presence of any two directors. 

15.1 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

PART15 

BORROWING AND INVESTMENTS 

The Board may from time to time on behalf of and in the name of the Corporation: 

raise and borrow money in such manner and amounts, on such security, or without 

security , from such sources and upon such terms and conditions as they think fit; 

guarantee the repayment of money by any other person or corporation or the performance 

of any obligation of any other person or corporation ; and 

incur, or secure the payment or repayment of or the performance of, any indebtedness or 

obligation in such manner and upon such terms and conditions in all respects as the 

Directors think fit , and , without limiting the generality of the foregoing, by the issue of bonds, 

notes, income bond, perpetual or redeemable debentures or any mortgage, charge or other 

security whether specific or floating, on the undertaking or on the whole or any part of the 

property and assets (both present and future) of the Corporation or indebtedness or other 

obligation of the Corporation , provided, however, that no debenture shall be issued by the 

Corporation w ithout first being authorized by bylaw duly passed by a Board resolution and 

sanctioned by at least two-thirds of the votes cast at a special meeting of members duly 

called for considering the bylaw. 

15.2 The Board may invest in real and personal property, shares, bonds, debentures and other 

securities and evidences of indebtedness and obligations issued or guaranteed by any individual or entity 

(regardless of any relationship which might exist cetween the individual or entity and the Corporation) and in 

evidences of any interest in respect of any such real and personal property , share, bonds debentures and 

other securities and evidence of indebtedness and obligations and the Board may invest and lend money at 

interest on the security of real or personal property or without security and may change or alter any 

investments, and while the Corporation is the holder or owner thereof the Board may, on behalf of the 

Corporation , exercise all rights , powers and privi leges of ownership, including all voting rights, if any , with 

respect thereto. The Board shall be authorized to invest in "non-qualified investments" as defined in the 

Income Tax Act. 
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(a) 
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PART16 

NOTICES 

Notice of a meeting of members shall be given to: 

every person shown on the register of members as a 

member on the day the notice is given; and 

the auditor. 

No other person is entitled to be given notice of a meeting of members. 

16.2 Any notice required to be given may be given to a member, a director or a member of a 

committee either personally (by delivery, facsimile, telegram or telex) or by first class mail posted to such 

person's or representative organization's registered address. 

16.3 A notice sent by mail shall be deemed to have been given on the third day following that on 

wh ich the notice was posted. In proving that notice has been given it is sufficient to prove the notice was 

properly addressed and put in a post office receptacle with adequate postage affixed, provided that if there 

shall be, between the time of mailing and the deemed receipt of the notice, a mail strike or other labour 

dispute which might reasonably be expected to delay the delivery of such notice by the mails, then such 

notice shall only be effective when actually received. Any notice delivered by hand or sent by facsimile, 

telegram or telex shall be deemed to have been given on the day it was so delivered or sent. 

16.4 If a number of days notice or a notice extending over any other period is required to be 

given, the day the notice is given or deemed to have been given shall not, but the day on which the event for 

which notice is given shall , be counted in the number of days required. 

PART17 

MISCELLANEOUS 

17.1 Any meeting of the Board, Advisory Council or any committee may also be held, or any 

member, director, Advisory Council member or committee person may participate in any meeting of the 

Board, Advisory Council or any committee in which he or she is entitled to participate, by conference call or 

similar communication equipment or device provided that all the directors, Advisory Council members or 

committee persons entitled to attend such meeting respectively , have consented generally or in respect of a 

particular meeting to conducting the meeting in th is manner and so long as all the directors, Advisory 

Council members or committee persons so participating in the meeting can hear and respond to one 

another. All such directors, Advisory Council members or committee persons so participating in any such 

meeting shall be deemed to be present in person at the stated location of such meeting and, notwithstanding 

anything to the contrary in the foregoing bylaws, shall be entitled to vote by a voice vote recorded by the 

secretary of such meeting. 

17.2 The rules governing when notice is deemed to have been given set out in these bylaws 

shall apply mutatis mutandis to determine when a Board resolution shall be deemed to have been submitted 

to all of the directors and when an ordinary resolution shal l be deemed to have been submitted to all of the 
members. 

17.3 The Corporation shall have the right to subscribe to, become a member of and cooperate 

with any other society, foundation, corporation or association whose purposes or objectives are in whole or 
in part similar to the Corporation's purposes. 
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PART18 

INDEMNIFICATION 

18.1 The Corporation hereby acknowledges that each and every director and officer of the 

Corporation shall be deemed to have assumed office on the express understanding and agreement and 

condition that every director and officer of the Corporation and his or her heirs, personal representatives and 

estate and effects respectively shall from time to time and at all times be indemnified and saved harmless 

out of the funds of the Corporation for all amounts and damages which such director or directors or officer or 

officers sustains or incurs in or about any action, suit or proceeding which is brought, commenced or 

prosecuted against him, her or them for or in respect of any act, deed, matter or thing whatsoever made, 

done or permitted by him, her or them in or about the execution of the duties of his, her or their office or 

offices, and also from and against all other costs, charges and expenses which he, she or they sustain or 

incur in or about or in relation to the affairs of the Corporation except costs, charges or such expenses as 

are incurred by his, her or their own wilful negligence or default. 

18.2 The Corporation shall , to the fullest extent permitted by the Canada Corporations Act, 

indemnify and hold harmless, every person heretofore, now or hereafter serving as a director, officer or 

agent of the Corporation and his or her heirs and personal representatives. 

18.3 Expenses incurred with respect to any claim, action, suit or proceeding against an officer or 

director of the Corporation may be advanced by the Corporation prior to the final disposition thereof in the 

discretion of the Board and upon receipt of an undertaking satisfactory in form and amount to the Board by 

or on behalf of the recipient to repay such amount unless it is ultimately determined that he or she is entitled 

to indemnification hereunder. 

18.4 The Corporation shall apply to the Court for any approval of the Court which may be 

required to make the indemnities herein effective and enforceable. 

18.5 The failure of a director or officer of the Corporation to comply with the provisions of the 

Canada Corporations Act or of the letters patent or these bylaws shall not invalidate any indemnity to which 

he or she is entitled under this Part. 

18.6 The Board may cause the Corporation to purchase and maintain insurance for the benefit 

of any person and his or her heirs and personal representatives against any liability incurred by that person 

resulting from him or her acting as a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or as a director 

or officer of any corporation or society because of his or her relationship to the Corporation. 

18.7 Each director and officer of the Corporation upon being elected or appointed shall be 

deemed to have contracted with the Corporation on the terms of the foregoing indemnities. 

PART19 

BYLAWS 

19.1 Each member, on being admittec to membership is entitled to and upon his or her request, 

the Corporation shall provide him or her with a copy of the letters patent and these bylaws of the 

Corporation. 

19.2 These bylaws shall not be amended or added to except by bylaw sanctioned by two-thirds 

of the votes cast at a special meeting of members called for the purpose of amending or adding to these 

bylaws, and no such sanctioned amendment or addition shall be effective until the approval of the Minister of 

Industry in respect thereof has been obtained. 
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PART20 
HEAD OFFICE 

20.1 The head office of the Corporation shall be located at such address within the place 

designated in the letters patent incorporating the Corporation as the directors may from time to time 

determine. 


	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8

